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Monday, July 30, 2007


--- Upon commencing at 9:34 a.m.

MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  Good morning, everyone.  Can everyone hear me?

The Ontario Energy Board is sitting today and tomorrow, July 30th and 31st, to hear the evidence and argument related to an application received by Hydro One Networks on March 30th, 2007.

The application was made by Hydro One pursuant to section 98 of the Ontario Energy Board Act.  It's an application to get interim access to certain lands.  The Board gave the application file number EB-2007-0051.

The purpose of the oral hearing on the application for access to land is to examine the evidence filed by Hydro One in support of its access-to-land application, and to provide parties or their counsel with an opportunity to cross-examine Hydro One's witnesses, to present their own evidence and/or to provide comment on Hydro One's application.

My name is Pamela Nowina.  I am Presiding Member of the Panel of the Ontario Energy Board that will hear this application.  With me are fellow Panel Members Ms. Cynthia Chaplin and Mr. Bill Rupert.

We are the adjudicators charged with hearing this evidence, comments and arguments in the hearing, and we will be making the decision in this case.

PROCEDURAL MATTERS:

I am going to go into a little bit of detail about this proceeding, because there may be parties here who aren't familiar with Ontario Energy Board hearings.

Before I go into the details of the access-to-land application, I want to be clear about the scope of this oral proceeding for the next day or two.  Hydro One has made two separate applications to the Ontario Energy Board related to the Bruce-to-Milton project.

One of these applications is for construction of a new transmission line between the Bruce power facility and the Milton switching station.  We know this is the leave-to-construct application.

The other application is for permission to access the land along the proposed route before the Board makes a decision on the leave-to-construct application.  We are here today in relation only to this access-to-land application.

The hearing for the leave-to-construct application is presently scheduled to be heard in January of 2008, and over the next few months you will get more information with respect to that application.

I want to emphasize that the decision that the Board makes in this access-to-land application will not affect the Board's process to hear, or its final decision, in the leave-to-construct application.

I will review the scope of the access-to-land application in a few moments, but just to be very clear, the Ontario Energy Board does not intend to hear evidence, cross-examination, or argument related to the Bruce-to-Milton leave-to-construct application today or tomorrow.

We are also not here in relation to any application for expropriation, as we have not received any such application yet.  Furthermore, although there may be questions or submissions relating to the ongoing environmental assessment process and how it fits with the access-to-land application -- indeed, that is an issue in this case -- it should be understood that the EA is an entirely separate process, and our Board has no role with regard to approving or rejecting the environmental assessment.

Our mandate over the next few days is fairly narrow, and I will explain that mandate a little further now.

On July 9th, 2007 the Board held an Issues Day in this case and, by way of oral decision, the Board defined the final issues list for this proceeding.

I will read the issues list and ask all parties to pay particular attention, as this list is what we will be asking all parties to stick to in their evidence and in the questions that they will be asking.

This is the issues list:

Is it appropriate to grant permission to access (a) in advance of the approved environmental assessment terms of reference, or (b) in advance of the submission of the proposed environmental assessment terms of reference to the Ministry of the Environment?

The second issue:

The OEB Act allows the Board to authorize early access to land to allow an applicant to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of work.  Are the early-access activities proposed by Hydro One appropriate?

And the third issue:

What conditions, if any, regarding the early-access activities should the Board attach to its orders under section 98(1.1)(a)?

Those are the issues in this case.

By way of a letter dated July 16th, 2007 that was sent to all parties, the Board explained the purpose of the oral hearing, how the oral hearing would proceed and how a party could participate in the oral hearing.

If you would like to see a copy of that letter to get a better idea of how the Ontario Energy Board hearing works, please see someone from Board Staff.  There is a desk outside the room, over that way, where you can ask questions, and Staff will do their best to answer your questions or find someone who can.

They also have previous -- they have copies of previous documents that were sent to all parties who indicated they wished to receive our material.

Please don't hesitate to ask Board Staff at any time for clarification about the process or about how you might participate.  They are here to assist and you will see Board Staff, as I said, outside the door and Board Staff here are to right, the three folks on this side.  They will introduce themselves later.

There are also Board Staff in the audience.  Do you want to identify yourself, those folks with Board Staff, so people know who they can ask questions of?

All of those folks are here to help you.

In terms of the schedule for the next two days, we do have a draft schedule which is available.  I think there are copies outside.  We will be talking about that schedule in a few moments, as we see what appearances we have and see whether or not it needs to be adjusted, or whether the schedule as we have written will work.

It is based on the information that has been provided to Board Staff up to this point and in terms of what parties wish to cross-examine or make oral comments.

In a moment, I will ask parties to register their appearances for this part of the hearing.  For those of you who are not familiar with the Board processes, you need only register your appearance if you intend to ask questions - that is, cross-examine the witnesses - or to make arguments in this proceeding.

If you are represented by a lawyer, your lawyer will register your appearance for you.  If you are here to make only an oral comment, you do not need to state your appearance to the Panel, but we do ask you to inform Staff at the table outside so we can ensure that we have time to hear from you later.

If you are here only to observe the proceeding, you need not register your presence.

Once everyone has registered their appearance in this portion of the hearing, we will deal with any preliminary matters that any party or their lawyer may have.

Once that is complete, I will ask Hydro One to present its evidence on the access-to-land application.  Hydro One witnesses will be sworn and will provide an overview of the evidence.  The witnesses will then be available for questioning or cross-examination by any interested party.

The Ontario Energy Board lawyer will proceed with his questions first, and that will be followed by the other parties.

You will see by the schedule that we have set aside time for oral comments.  We may hear these oral comments later today.  We may hear them tomorrow.  So we ask you to register, as I mentioned earlier, or to let Staff outside the door know if you are going to make oral comments.

The Panel will be present to hear your comments, and they will be recorded.  The entire proceeding is recorded.

The Panel will consider your comments as we make our decision.  We expect to issue a written decision in this case within the next few weeks.

The transcripts of the written record of the proceeding will be available as soon as possible after the hearing, probably within the next few days.  It will be posted on the Board's website.

I note that this hearing is open to all members of the public, with no restrictions, and that includes media.  If there are any media present, we ask that you do not use your cameras while the hearing is under way.

We would also ask, while the hearing is in session, that everyone keep the background conversation to a minimum.  We note that there are microphones here and that you move forward to a microphone if you wish to speak.

Please turn off your cell phones during the proceeding.  If you need to have a discussion with someone else in the room, perhaps you could leave the room to make the proceedings move most effectively.

We don't mind if you bring a coffee or a beverage into the hearing room, but we ask that you do not eat in the hearing room.


That completes my questions. I will now take appearances, perhaps from Hydro One first.

APPEARANCES:

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chairman.  My name is Gordon Nettleton.  I appear on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.

MR. MILLAR:  Good morning, Madam Chair, Michael Millar, counsel for Board Staff.  To my left is Ms. Zora Crnojacki.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.

MR. ROSS:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  My name is Quinn Ross.  I'm appearing from the Ross Firm, representing what has been now titled the Ross Firm Group.  With me is co-counsel Heather Ross of the same firm.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Ross.

MR. SPERDUTI:  Good morning, Madam Clair, Frank Sperduti here for the PowerLine Connections group.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Sperduti.

MR. WELLENREITER:  Good morning, Madam Chair, Walter Wellenreiter, appearing for the, appearing on behalf of landowner Heinrich Eschlboeck.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Wellenreiter.

MR. STEPHENSON:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  My name is Richard Stephenson.  I am counsel for the Power Workers' Union.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.

MR. MacINTOSH:  Madam Chair, David MacIntosh for Energy Probe.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. MacIntosh.

MR. MCMEEKEN:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  My name is Kevin McMeeken.  I'm with the law firm of Halpin McMeeken Law Office.  I represent Cedarwell Excavating Limited, and Herman and Berta Weller.

MS. NOWINA:  Was it Mr. McMeeken?


MR. MCMEEKEN:  That's correct.

MS. NOWINA:  Can you spell that for us, Mr. McMeeken.


MR. MCMEEKEN:  Capital M-c-M-e-e-k-e-n.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, I can advise that I have been contacted by Peter Fallis, Fallis & McMillan, and he is caught in the local traffic and anticipates being here in the next 20 minutes.


MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you very much.  Anyone else want to register an appearance?


MR. WAERN:  Yeah, my name is Bryn Waern.  I'm with Toad Hill Farms.  I am on the list.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Waern, did you plan to cross-examine or just make an oral comment?

MR. WAERN:  I will be asking questions.

MS. NOWINA:  You will be cross-examining.  Thank you, Mr. Waern. 

All right.  Is that everyone?

We have the schedule which shows -- let me find it here -- that we expect to complete cross-examination today and move to argument tomorrow, that we have time for oral comments later today, and oral comments tomorrow afternoon.

We do have quite a few counsel who wish to cross-examine, and other parties, so that schedule looks like it will work.  However, if things go very quickly and we can move to argument today, we will do that, or at least perhaps your initial argument, Mr. Nettleton.  Are there any comments on that schedule?  Any required changes?  Concerns?

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, just to point out one thing.  I think, of the counsel who are here and more importantly who are going to be here in a moment, I think Mr. Fallis is the one who will likely have the most cross-examination and probably the most submissions.  So we may wish to run that by him when he arrives because it may turn on how long he intends to take.  Our timing.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  We will wait and we will ask him when he gets here.  Mr. Nettleton, do you want to begin?

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I have one preliminary matter --

MS. NOWINA:  Yes.

MR. NETTLETON:  -- that concerns some late filings that happened last week.  There was a few letters that were sent to the Board and to interested parties during last week, and they have been all conveniently included in one document that, again, was sent by courier to all 2007-0051 participants on July 26th.  I thought it might be convenient if that document was filed, as it does include many updates and revisions to the evidence, and my witnesses would then simply adopt this document as their -- as part of their evidence in this proceeding.

MS. NOWINA:  Do you have copies for parties, Mr. Nettleton?

MR. NETTLETON:  I do, ma'am.  And they are at the back of the room or on the table outside the room.  I have also provided my friend Mr. Millar with copies, and copies to my other friends in the room.

MS. NOWINA:  Should we mark them as an exhibit, Mr. Millar?

MR. MILLAR:  Exhibit K1.1, and Ms. Crnojacki has copies for you.

EXHIBIT NO. K1.1:  HYDRO ONE MATERIALS-COMPILED 


UPDATES, ORIGINALLY FILED JULY 26, 2007

MS. NOWINA:  Any other preliminary matters?

MR. ROSS:  Just one, briefly, Madam Chair –- well, potentially two, excuse me.  I just wanted to note on the record, we were contacted this weekend by another property owner who will be seeking intervenor status.  If it's appropriate, I would like to request that intervenor status on behalf of Diana and Michael DeBliek, D-e-B-l-i-e-k.  I will be providing a formal letter of intervention for the Board's review and potential approval and copying the same to my friend, the applicant.  I just wanted that noted.  Also prior to the commencement of examination-in-chief, I was wanting to seek an order excluding witnesses.

I note in the Board material sent out describing the proceedings, the initial examination and cross-examination is described as a formal court-like process.  I think it might be in the interests of those of us who seek to cross-examine, that the witnesses be excluded.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Millar, do you have an opinion on that?

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, that is not uncommon before the courts, but it has certainly, as far as I know, never been done before the Board.

Perhaps I could get some more clarification from Mr. Ross.  I believe there is only one witness panel here; are you seeking they be excluded for the opening comments?  I believe we will only be questioning them, and that's pretty much the entire case today.  I don't think anyone else has any witnesses.

MR. ROSS:  So just to clarify, the witnesses are to be cross-examined as a Panel?

MR. MILLAR:  Yes.  That is the practice before the Board, and I believe that is what Mr. Nettleton proposes to do.

MR. NETTLETON:  That's correct, Madam Chair.

MR. ROSS:  That's fine.  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  That's our common practice, Mr. Ross.

Mr. Ross, can you give me a little more information about the people who wish to be intervenors?  Are they landowners at this point?

MR. ROSS:  They are.  They own common properties to the rest of our group in concession 16, lots 1 and 2 in Greenock Township, which is in the Bruce area.

MS. NOWINA:  You wish them to be intervenors in this, the section 98 access-to-land hearing?

MR. ROSS:  If it's possible.  Obviously they have not had a letter of intervention supplied but they would be exactly the same as the other members of our group who have been granted intervenor status.

MS. NOWINA:  They would have to accept the record as it stands, Mr. Ross.  We can't go backwards for them.  Do you understand that?


MR. ROSS:  Yes, thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, do you have any concerns?

MR. NETTLETON:  Subject to my friend's advising the Board that these landowners are landowners that are directly affected by the project, we have no questions.  But if that is his undertaking and representation, we have no comments.

MS. NOWINA:  And that's the case, Mr. Ross?

MR. ROSS:  That is the case, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  Fine.  We accept them as intervenors in the case, then.

MR. ROSS: Thank you.

MR. SPERDUTI:  Madam Chair, just before we get started.  I have provided Mr. Millar with an updated listing of the Powerlines Connections Group client list.
I am not sure it needs to be marked as an exhibit, but I offer that to the Board for purposes of preparing whatever order follows from these proceedings.

Just in terms of timing for today and tomorrow, I note that on the basis of the conditions which Hydro One has now agreed to as outlined in Exhibit K1.1, on behalf of Powerline Connections, I don't expect to take an active role in this proceeding.

MS. NOWINA:  I'm sorry -- you do or do not?

MR. SPERDUTI:  I do not.  I do not expect to be cross-examining Hydro One's witnesses. I am here to observe the proceedings.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Sperduti.  Mr. Sperduti, your updated list of clients you are going to give us -- does that only include people who are already intervenors in this case or are there new intervenors?

MR. SPERDUTI:  There are a few new intervenors, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  In the sense that we don't have them on our intervention list and we haven't served them up to this point.

MR. SPURDUTI:  In the sense they're not included in the list of the Powerline Connection group that the Board has provided in its orders to date.

MS. NOWINA:  I will ask you to work with Board Staff at the break, perhaps, to clarify whether or not there are any new intervenors in that group.  If it's just an updating of your client list, that's fine.  If there are new intervenors, we will have to make them intervenors.

MR. SPERDUTI:  I think it is just an update to the list, Madam Chair, but I certainly will discuss it with Mr. Millar.

MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you.  Are there any other preliminary matters?  Mr. Nettleton, do you want to introduce your panel?

MR. NETTLETON:  I do.  

OPENING STATEMENT BY MR. NETTLETON:


MR. NETTLETON:  Perhaps, Madam Chair, let me take this opportunity, first, to say how pleased Hydro One is to be before you today to consider this, an important part of the Bruce-to-Milton transmission project.  As you indicated, today's application concerns a request made by Hydro One to seek permission to access certain lands for the purpose related to the siting of the proposed work.

These activities are known as early-access activities, and Hydro One's evidence will be and is that the information gathered will be used for its environmental assessment requirements, engineering requirements and information that will be used for its land acquisition program, all of which relate to the suitability of the siting of the proposed work.

The nature of the activities are not intended to be destructive.  Access to lands means that affected landowners will need to be consulted regarding access activities, and Hydro One has consulted with a landowner group -- namely, Powerline Connections group -- to review proposed terms and conditions relating to how early-access activities should be conducted.

Positive and insightful considerations were provided through these discussions, and on Wednesday of last week, Hydro One filed revised terms and conditions which are intended to address concerns identified by the Powerline Connections group members.

Hydro One is prepared to have the Board attach to any early-access approval the revised conditions so that they will govern Hydro One's conduct for all affected lands, not just the lands that are represented by Powerline Connections group.

Given the importance of these terms and conditions, Hydro One witnesses would like to provide the Board and parties with further information about their content, and, subject to any concerns of the Board, what I would propose is that this step take place following the introduction of the Hydro One witnesses and after they have been sworn.

Is that acceptable, Madam Chair?

MS. NOWINA:  Any comments from any of the other counsel present?  That's fine, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  In terms of the introduction of the Hydro One panel, there are three witnesses here today from Hydro One that will be speaking to the evidence.  Let me take this opportunity to introduce you to them.

Seated closest to the Board is Mr. Andrew Skalski.  Mr. Skalski is the senior advisor of the regulatory affairs department.  He has been employed with Hydro One for the past eight years in various levels of increasing responsibility.

Mr. Skalski possesses a Master's of business administration degree from York University, and he will address questions related to the application that concern policy matters.

Seated next to Mr. Skalski is Mr. Victor Girard.  Mr. Girard, in his capacity as manager of project management engineering and construction services, is here and has responsibility for the engineering and construction of the Bruce-to-Milton project.

Mr. Girard has been employed with Hydro One for over 33 years.  He is a professional engineer and a graduate of Queen's University.  Mr. Girard will answer questions related to how the early-access activities will assist Hydro One in the siting of the proposed new transmission powerline project.

Finally, seated beside Mr. Girard is Mr. Robert Thomson.  Mr. Thomson is team leader for special projects and acquisitions.  Mr. Thomson has been employed with Hydro One for over 31 years.  He holds a degree, a bachelor of arts degree in geography from Sir Wilfrid Laurier University, and Mr. Thomson will be able to address questions concerning the land consultation efforts that will be conducted in association with the applied for early-access activities.

With that introduction, Madam Chair, I am wondering if the witnesses could be sworn.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes, we'll do that.

HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 1

Andrew Skalski, Sworn

Victor Girard, Sworn

Robert Thomson, Sworn

MS. NOWINA:  Go ahead, Mr. Nettleton.

EXAMINATION-IN-CHIEF BY MR. NETTLETON:

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  Gentlemen, do you have before you the application documents that Hydro One Networks Inc. has filed in this proceeding and that have been identified as Exhibit Nos. A1.1 and A2.1, as well as the responses Hydro One has provided to information requests that have been identified as Exhibit B1, and, finally, the exhibit that was filed this morning identified as Exhibit K1.1?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, we do.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, we do.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. NETTLETON:  Gentlemen, were those documents prepared by you or under your direction and control?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, they were.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, they were.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, they were.

MR. NETTLETON:  Are they -- sorry, do you have any revisions or corrections to make to those documents?

MR. SKALSKI:  No.

MR. GIRARD:  No, I don't.

MR. THOMSON:  No, I don't.

MR. NETTLETON:  Are they, therefore, accurate to the best of your knowledge and belief?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, they are.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, they are.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, they are.

MR. NETTLETON:  And do you each of you, therefore, adopt these documents as the evidence of Hydro One Networks Inc. in this proceeding?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, we do.

MV. GIRARD:  Yes, we do.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, we do.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  Now, gentlemen, on July 25th, Hydro One filed a revised response to Board Information Request No. 5, and that has been part of the K1.1 exhibit.

Do you have that document before you?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, I do.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, I do.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, I do.

MR. NETTLETON:  And these set out proposed terms and conditions that Hydro One would be prepared to accept in the event the Board granted approval of this application; is that correct, Mr. Skalski?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, that is correct.

MR. NETTLETON:  Mr. Skalski, could you provide some background as to how this revised response was developed?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, Mr. Nettleton.

As you indicated in your opening remarks, Hydro One had the opportunity to have fruitful discussions with the Powerline group concerning the terms and conditions of early access, and, as a result of those discussions, we were able to come up with a revised set of conditions using as a basis Board Staff's proposed conditions that were included in Staff's Interrogatory No. 5.

So, as I say, we had several discussions with Powerline and were able to come up with a revised set of conditions, which we understand Powerline is agreeable to, and we filed that revised set of proposed conditions with the Board last week.

MR. NETTLETON:  And, Mr. Skalski, is it your intention that those draft terms and conditions apply just to Powerline Connections group members?

MR. SKALSKI:  No.  We would propose that they apply to all affected landowners.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  Mr. Thomson and Mr. Girard, can you provide a brief explanation of each of the terms and conditions that are described in the revised response?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, we can.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, we can.

MR. NETTLETON:  Why don't you go ahead?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, I will start with the first condition.  This is in K1.1.

The first condition relates to early-access activities described, and these activities will only take place within the lands known as the widened corridor lands and on access routes thereto.

The second condition relates to notification.  Hydro One's condition states that landowners will be notified a minimum of 48 hours prior to entry to the property.  The notification will delineate -- specify a five-day window.  This notification will be either oral or written, and the condition or the notification will include a five-day window and the window will be Monday to Friday, excluding statutory holidays, and from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

The third condition relates to instances where Hydro One cannot contact an owner, and in those cases what we propose to do is, we propose to keep a record of the activities conducted on the lands, and make it available to the landowner upon request.  The fourth condition relates to the content of the notification.  This will be provided to the landowner either orally or written, and it will describe the activities that will be conducted during the early access.  The activities are -- we'll do legal surveys, including staking of the property limits, and measurements along the widened corridor, and on potential off-corridor access routes, as required.

There will be engineering surveys conducted on the properties, which will involve staking and measuring within the widened corridor.  There will be geotechnical investigations on the properties involving accessing the widened corridor, or access routes with tracked vehicles to do the geotechnical investigations.  There will be property appraisals, including wood lot assessments on the widened corridor, and on the affected properties.  There will be biological surveys conducted by personnel on foot, involving the collection of plant and wildlife information, habitat assessments, and delineation of wetlands and ANSIs on the widened corridor and on potential access routes off-corridor.

We will have archeological surveys by licensed professionals, and in accordance with provincial guidelines.  These activities will identify areas of interest in recently ploughed fields and potential digging of small pits to a maximum depth of one metre within the widened corridor, and potential off-corridor access routes.

The other environmental investigations by personnel on foot include hydrological water quality; there will be business owners' survey and landowner surveys, agricultural investigations, well-water testing, locations of septic systems within the widened corridor, and on potential access routes.

The fifth condition relates to tree clearing.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the landowner, Hydro One shall not clear mature trees, and mature trees are described as having a calliper diameter no greater than two inches three feet above the ground.



The sixth condition relates to geotechnical investigations.  Hydro One commits to making all reasonable efforts to consult with landowners prior to entering the properties.  Providing a sketch, depicting the access route for the tracked vehicle, five days prior to entry to the property.

This period of a time is intended so that the property owner and Hydro One can discuss any special fixtures on the land, such as wells, septic systems, and tile drainage.
So that these fixtures can be avoided during the soil-testing activities.

The seventh condition applies to special steps that Hydro One will take to minimize impact during early-access activities.

If the drill rigs -- instances of this is, if the soil-testing and geotechnical drill rig had to be left on site overnight, we will provide temporary fencing around the drill rig so that there will be less chance of any interruption to it.

We will also use and install temporary drainage on the lands so that we do not affect the drainage flow on any access to the lands.

The eighth condition relates to landowners observing activities by Hydro One during the early-access activities.  Hydro One is agreeable to that, with the proviso that they adhere to Hydro One's safety policies and the Ontario Occupational Health and Safety Act.

The ninth condition relates to the keeping of records.  Hydro One proposes to keep records of all personnel attending the lands and entering on the lands, complete with the time they enter on the land, the locations they accessed and the activities undertaken.

The tenth condition relates to sharing of information.  Hydro One commits to providing, upon request of the landowner, information collected during the early-access activities, such as legal survey, engineering surveys, property appraisal, environmental information, and the environmental information is subject to provincial guidelines set out by MNR and other agencies about disclosure of sensitive information such as species at risk protection.

What Hydro One does undertake is that if these situations do arise, we will notify the landowner of the instance and provide them with the non-disclosure information and why we can't disclose it. 

The eleventh condition relates to consultation with landowners.  We propose that our property agents will discuss with the landowners, prior to entering, the condition they want all gates, fences and entryways left.  Whether they're to be closed, or whether to be left as found.  In other words if they're open, they are to be left open.  But if they're to be closed, they are to be left closed.

The twelfth condition and last condition relates to the duration of the early access and that is that it will expire on April 1st, 2009, unless otherwise directed by Board.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Mr. Girard.  With those opening comments, Madam Chair, this panel is available for any questions that the parties may have.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  Before we begin cross-examination, Mr. Fallis, I see you have arrived.

MR. FALLIS:  Hello.  I had an encounter with the law this morning, so -- I tried to arrive too fast.

MS. NOWINA:  So, Mr. Fallis, I assume you wish to cross-examine the witnesses today?

MR. FALLIS:  In due course, yes.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes.  And did you have an opportunity to see what we have noted as Exhibit K1.1 in this morning's proceeding?  It's the latest document from Hydro One and the one the witnesses were just discussing.

MR. FALLIS:  My friend has provided me with a copy.  I don't actually have my own set copy yet, but I am sure I will be provided one shortly.

MS. NOWINA:  Have you had a chance to review it yet?

MR. FALLIS:  Not yet, but I will.

MS. NOWINA:  We will make sure we have some kind of break before your cross-examination so you have an opportunity to do that.

In terms of order of cross-examination, we will begin with Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR: Thank you, Madam Chair.  I should just note I believe Exhibit K1.1 is simply a compilation of documents that have already provided, so I don't think Mr. Fallis will find anything new or surprising there.Mr. Nettleton, is that correct, it is just a compilation?

MR. NETTLETON:  That is correct, sir.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MILLAR:

MR. MILLAR:  Good morning.  Thank you for that helpful introduction.  I have, I don't know, maybe only 20 minutes or so of questions.  We will see how it goes and they're largely clarification questions.

So I think I will start with the draft conditions that you've just helpfully gone through, and perhaps I could start with condition number 2.  This is on page 2 of 4 of the Exhibit B, tab 1, schedule 5.  It is also of course contained in what is now Exhibit K1.1.

This relates to notice.  By notice, I mean notice of your intention to actually access the land.  Not notice of the proceeding.

Could you please explain for me your rationale -- I think when Board Staff had provided some draft conditions, they suggested at least as a draft both oral and written notice. 

Could you please explain to me why you are satisfied that written or oral is sufficient? 

MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry, could you just repeat the second part of the -- oral.

MR. MILLAR:  Yes.  You suggested in the draft conditions that you have provided in your response to Board Staff IR No. 5, that you will be providing either written or oral notice; whereas the original suggestion, at least from Board Staff, had been both written and oral notice.  I am just wondering if you could explain why you feel either/or is sufficient?

MR. GIRARD:  I think it is important that Hydro One has flexibility in carrying out their work.  We will endeavour, as we say, we will make all reasonable efforts to provide oral or written.  Sometimes it is not possible due to weather conditions, equipment breakdowns, staff being sick, to make all efforts.  We will make all efforts.

We endeavour that we will always, you know, be able to contact them, but there may be instances where an owner is absent from the property.  They're absentee owners and not able to make both oral and written --

MR. MILLAR:  Sorry, I didn't mean to cut you off.  Is it your intention to attempt to do both, but the requirement would only be one or the other?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  It is our attempt.  It will always be our attempt to do both, to visit with the owner, physically to visit with them, to have our property agent visit with the owner, and at that time to provide him with a written list of activities that we will be conducting on the property.

MR. MILLAR:  I see.  So would there always be something in writing that goes to the owner?  And the question is whether they also get a telephone call, as well?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, there will always be something in writing that goes to the owner in advance.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So always something in writing, and then, where possible, a phone call, as well.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you, that's helpful.  A question that occurred to me, actually, as I was listening to your examination-in-chief:  Would you agree with me -- do you think it would be useful if, as part of that written notice, a copy of the conditions be attached to that?

Assuming that these conditions were approved, would you have any problem with the Board requiring you to send these conditions as part of the written notice when you access the land?

MR. GIRARD:  No.  We would be agreeable to sending the terms and conditions of approval to the owners and notifying them.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  When you do -- obviously when you send written notice, you will have a written record of that.  How do you plan to track where you make phone calls to the property owners and if you got in touch with them?

I assume you have some mechanism for recording that and keeping that information?

MR. THOMSON:  We'll actually be keeping a log and using a central database.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So even where it is telephone notice, it will be written down who you contacted, when you contacted them and what you told them?

MR. THOMSON:  Correct, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  Now, to whom will you be providing notice?  Maybe we will start with the written notice.  I know you have a list of all the landowners, but there are almost certainly instances where the person actually working the property or living there may not be the landowner.

To whom do you intend to provide the notice?

MR. THOMSON:  Well, it would go to the landowner, and then if there's tenants -- is that what you're...

MR. MILLAR:  Yes, if there are tenants or just actually a field where there may be someone renting the land.  Well that's a tenant, so I guess tenant is the issue.

MR. THOMSON:  The main thing is we would certainly be contacting the landowner.  We may not be aware if there are tenants or whether there are -- you know, obviously that type of information will come out with our meetings directly with the owners, but it may not.  But certainly we will let the landowner know and every effort will be made.



MR. SKALSKI:  If I could just elaborate, Mr. Millar, Hydro One has a fairly extensive landowner contact program which we plan to carry out.

I think it might be useful here if Mr. Thomson just indicates what our plan is in that respect, because that contact program will encompass information to the landowner on early-access activities before we get started.

MR. MILLAR:  Yes, that would be helpful.

MR. SKALSKI:  That is the basis for our communications effort with the landowners.  So, Mr. Thomson, if you could?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  The plan is that we have assigned land agents and they will be given or provided 35 to 40 owners each.

They will be there from the beginning of the project right through to the end.  They will be the single source of contact, meaning they will be there for all purposes of the early access right through land negotiations, through construction, et cetera.

We will be a focal point for the communication with the owner, and also dealing with any difficulties and also land negotiations.

MR. MILLAR:  Well, that is interesting.  It sounds like a good idea.  You will have the same person working with them and over and over, and they may become familiar with who the tenants are or the specifics of --

MR. THOMSON:  Absolutely, absolutely.

MR. MILLAR:  You may have already answered this question, but in the notice, you provide the notice of intention to access to land.  Will you be asking landowners to notify tenants, any tenants they may have of the land?

MR. NETTLETON:  Yes.  That would be what our recommendation would be, because we may not necessarily have their telephone numbers, et cetera, but -- getting it through our process, yes, but, yeah -- if the landowner prefers or wants us to talk directly to the tenant, we can certainly -- could do that.

MR. MILLAR:  I assume you would agree with me that in many instances, the tenant would have an equal or even greater interest than the landowner, depending what use they're making of the property?

MR. THOMSON:  If they're farming it, definitely, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  So Hydro One is well aware of that issue?

MR. THOMSON:  Absolutely, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  In terms of the written notice you are going to be providing, how will that be provided?  Will it be normal mail or priority post or registered mail?  Did you turn your minds to that?

MR. GIRARD:  Our intent would be -- is when the property agent -- excuse me -- when the property agent meets directly with the landowner, that he hand-deliver it.  That would be our preferred method of --

MR. MILLAR:  So personal service?

MR. GIRARD:  Personal service, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  If personal service isn't possible?

MR. GIRARD:  It will be sent through the post.

MR. MILLAR:  Regular mail?

MR. GIRARD:  Regular mail, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Do you have any method of ensuring that the people actually receive -- obviously personal service is preferable and where that happens, you will know they got it.

Do you have any way of knowing if people get the regular post?

MR. THOMSON:  Through registered mail, the person would be signing for it.

MR. MILLAR:  Will it be sent by registered mail?

MR. THOMSON:  It could be, if that is the only method.  But the personalized service is the preferable way we would be doing it, or priority post.

MR. MILLAR:  So absent personal service, did I hear you to say you will be doing registered mail or priority post, or has that been determined?

MR. GIRARD:  The details of that haven't been determined right now, but we, you know --

MR. MILLAR:  Do you object to doing it by registered mail?  I think that is the next best thing to personal service, if I am not mistaken.

MR. GIRARD:  No, no.  Hydro One has no objection to that.

MR. THOMSON:  We have done quite a bit through --

MR. MILLAR:  I believe original notices were sent by registered mail.

MR. THOMSON:  Absolutely, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  Thank you for that.

I think you have sort of touched on this issue -- I'm sorry, do you need a moment?

MR. THOMSON:  No, I was just going to say that in the past this has been a practice that we've done, using this owner-contact program.  It has been very successful and certainly in respect to personalized service, et cetera, that has worked very well.  Like, rather than sending out letters, the personalized service is probably our --

MR. MILLAR:  Yes, where that could be done, I don't think anyone would dispute that is the best way to communicate information.

Now, I think you have sort of touched on this question and the answer to this question in some of your other answers, but what do you propose -- what will Hydro One do when they actually arrive at the property to do the access?  You've given the notice.  You say:  We'll be there between Monday and Thursday.  You show up Tuesday morning to access someone's land.

What will you actually do when you get there?  Will you, for example, knock on the door to notify the owner that you are there, and I assume in some instances you may need a gate opened or something like that?

Can you tell us, at least generally - I know it may vary depending on what type of property there is - what the plan is when you actually show up in the morning to conduct activities on a landowner's land?

MR. GIRARD:  As you say, depending on the property, if the owner is resident, if there is someone on the property and they're working the field, we want to be as least -- we want to interrupt the owner as little as possible.

So we will have phoned him ahead of time and we would have talked to them.  The agent will have talked to them and given them the notice.  They will be arriving on Tuesday morning, and if there is a farm building there, we will knock on the door and tell them we're entering the property.

If the person's working in their field and we're coming across that field, we will signal to them that we're coming across the field, that we're going to be doing surveys at that time.

They may be farming.  They may be ploughing fields.  So we don't want to disrupt them any more than they wish to be disrupted.  We will be as unobtrusive.  We will be --

We consider ourselves to be a guest on their property and we will try to -- we will always act that way, as a guest on their property.

MR. MILLAR:  So, as I said before, obviously it will depend on the type of properties we're talking about.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Is it fair to say, I would assume your land agents will be involved in that and they will have personal contacts presumably with many of these people and help to coordinate the actual physical accessing of the property?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. THOMSON:  Actually, we've made attempts and reached a great number of the people already, through basic follow-up after the public information centres and also just to keep people informed on where we're going with the early access, et cetera.  So we have contacted a large number of the ones not represented by legal counsel.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  Moving on, if I could ask you to turn to condition, draft condition number 12; that is the last condition.  The sunset clause, if you will.

I can just read it out.  It is only a sentence long it says:
"Unless otherwise directed by this Board this order shall remain in effect until April 1st, 2009."


Can you tell me how you came to that date?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, I can.  One of the activities we're doing here is -- we're doing environmental investigations, on-ground environmental investigations.  And this condition allows us at least two spring growing seasons to see how things grow on the land, so we can do our environmental assessment.

MR. MILLAR:  So spring is a particularly important season.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, it is.  Spring is an important season.

MR. MILLAR:  What happens if -- I believe this is the first time the Board has actually dealt with a section 98(1).1 application -- would this order expire, imagine things go very well on the section 92 when you get either an approval or, for that matter, the application is rejected on the section 92, let's imagine that happens prior to April 1st, 2009.

Does this approval expire with either the acceptance or the rejection of the section 92 application?  That may be a question for your legal counsel.  In fact, if he wishes, he could address that in his closing argument.  It is a question I have, and if you have -- if you would like to make a stab at an answer, that's fine, or you may leave it at your counsel to address now or in argument.  It looks like argument.

MR. NETTLETON:  The baseball signals are going on here. 

I would be happy to deal with that in final argument, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  That's fine.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you for that.

I am going to be turning to one of the interrogatories, Board Staff Interrogatory No. 3(d), the evidentiary reference is Exhibit B, tab 1, schedule 3.  And it is page 2 of 2.

It deals with landowner complaints, such that they may arise.  In fact, perhaps for the benefit of the people in the room who don't have it, again it is a short response. Maybe I will just read it on to the record.

This is in response to a specific question from Board Staff, and it says:  
"The property agent will be the single point of contact for landowner complaints.  Complaints will be tracked in a central database.  The property agent will be responsible for initial resolution, with an escalation procedure in place for unresolved issues."


Can you tell me a little bit more about this escalation procedure?  I didn't see it further described in the prefiled evidence, so I would like to know a little bit more about that.

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Millar, if I could just clarify before we get to the response.  To make sure everyone is aware, part D of the response was omitted by mistake in the first filing of interrogatory responses that Hydro One made.

Part D was then included -- we noticed last week that it had been omitted -- so it was included in the series of updates that flowed through last week.  So just in case parties don't have it, it was included in the package that was sent last week.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, thank you.  And I have now read it, so people can hear it if they haven't seen it before.

So would someone care to answer the question?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  In regards to the escalation procedure, I think, just to reaffirm maybe point number 2, that the agent will certainly make its best efforts and we have been highly successful in the past to ever having anything escalated any further in regard to damages.

So I want to put a positive note on it, that I am not aware in my 30 years, that many ever having to go to a next or higher level.

But certainly escalation procedure is built in, that if there is something that just cannot be resolved between the parties, that it would probably or would be moving on to the Ontario Municipal Board for resolution, as we do with land-acquisition-compensation packages, the same type of thing.  But that is the procedure in place, that we would move it to that level.

MR. MILLAR:  When you say it would move on to the Ontario Municipal Board, do you mean by way of an expropriation proceeding or something of that nature?

MR. THOMSON:  Well, covered under this would be because it is of a nature where it should -- it cannot be resolved by the parties -- it would go under the Ontario Municipal Board for that type of purpose.

MR. MILLAR:  Sorry.  So you do mean expropriation?

MR. THOMSON:  Similar to expropriation, yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Similar to expropriation?

MR. THOMWON:  Well, expropriation we do go to the next level.

MR. MILLAR:  So that is the escalation provision you're speaking of?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. MILLQR:  So that wouldn't be dealt with by this Board.  It would go to the Municipal Board.

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  I would like to move on to some questions about the type of work you are proposing to do.

I will be referring, I guess, generally -- I don't even think you have to turn it up to your prefiled evidence, specifically Exhibit A, tab 1, schedule 1 as updated.

If you have it, it's probably helpful, but I don't necessarily plan to direct you to any specific passages.

I think it is fairly clear, when you look through the application and one of the conditions that you propose, and some of the answers to the interrogatories, that you plan to do a fair amount of environmental assessment work through this section 98 approval, if it should be granted.  Is that fair to say?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. MILLAR:  I guess the only thing the Board has to go on, in terms of its powers to grant approvals under section 98, are contained in the Act itself, and as I said, this is the first time we've dealt with that.

So maybe I will read out section 98(1.1), related to interim orders.

What it says is this:
"The Board may, upon application, issue an interim order authorizing a person and their officers, employees and agents of that person, to enter on land at the intended location of any part of a proposed work and to make such surveys and examinations as are necessary for fixing the site of the work and as are specified in the order if,"


Then it lists the people who are entitled to apply for that. 

You fall in under 98(1.1)(a), I believe, because you applied for a section 92.

But you would agree with me, I think, that the wording there isn't terribly specific.  So I would like to have the benefit of Hydro One's views as to why they believe that that encompasses work related to an environmental assessment, rather than -- for example -- specific engineering work on where a tower would go or something like that, something more traditionally dealt with in a leave-to-construct application.

I know that is a long question, but to sort of -- to shorten it, I guess I'm wondering if you can assist me in your rationale for conducting environmental assessment work pursuant to a Board order under 98(1.1).

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  It's Hydro One's position that in order to facilitate the advancement of this project and the siting of the work, we must do environmental assessment and that is why we're applying here.

We want to get on the ground to do ground truthing updata, to do the biological surveys, to do the environmental surveys that we need to do.

We want to enter on the land to determine if there is any sensitive features, which possibly must be mitigated in locating the work, because the type of work we've doing is building specific towers.  If we can find a -- if we find a sensitive area in the constructing of the transmission line, we may be able to avoid that sensitive area.

If we find an archeological site, by locating towers in different locations, we maybe -- it will be possible, probably, to avoid those sites.  So that's why we need to get on there to do these environmental assessments.  And to look at the growing seasons, to look at what is growing on the land and to possibly avoid any species at risk, because of what we do.  Transmission line is -- builds structures in specific locations.  A lot of locations along the right-of-way, we don't have to enter, necessarily.  We can avoid by building access roads along different parts of the corridor.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  So in your mind, "fixing the site" is the language from the statute?

MR. GIRARD:  That's right.

MR. MILLAR:  In your mind, fixing the site does incorporate those types of activities?

MR. GIRARD:  That's right.

MR. MILLAR:  Now, you would agree with me that the Act doesn't specifically reference environmental assessment activities?

MR. GIRARD:  That's right.

MR. MILLAR:  Nor archeological?

MR. GIRARD:  It does reference fixing the site.  In order to fix the site, we feel we have to do the environmental assessment work.

MR. MILLAR:  Yes.  I think there is not much dispute as to what the Act says.  It is just a matter of interpretation as to how far that goes, so I am not sure that there is much more I can ask you about that.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. MILLAR:  I would like to put one question to you.  I know that Hydro One has sought to do work, in addition to environmental assessment work, through a section 98, but would it be your position -- again, if Mr. Nettleton chooses to comment on this in his closing comments, that would be fine, as well.  I know you gentlemen aren't lawyers.

But if an applicant -- would it be open to an applicant to use section 98 if all they wanted to do was EA work?  Do you have a view on that?  If they had no engineering testing or anything like that, all they wanted to do was count the frogs or look at the ponds, whatever it is that the EA requires, could they get approval for purely EA work through section 98?

Again, if you gentlemen prefer to pass on that for your counsel, he can -- I am putting a lot on Mr. Nettleton's lap, I know, but it may be more appropriate if he could have a stab at answering now, but I am certainly happy to have that answer in his closing argument.

MR. NETTLETON:  There are six eyeballs looking right at me now, so I suspect the answer, Mr. Millar, is I would be happy to address that in final argument.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, thank you for that.  Moving on.  In the conditions and in the prefiled evidence, I don't see anything relating to any type -- I do see some language relating to damages, as are provided for in section 98.2, I believe, of the Act, but I don't see anything related to any type of access fee or anything like that.

Are any access fees contemplated by -- and by "access fee", I mean simply a fee to access the land that is not tied specifically to damages, to damage that may be done to the land.

Does Hydro One contemplate paying any type of access fees to landowners?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, we do not, Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay, thank you.  And I believe your prefiled evidence states that you will deal with the damages issue.  Obviously it is hard to know what damages may be now, but you will deal with them pursuant to section 98(2) of the Act?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's correct.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.

If I could take you back to your prefiled evidence, Exhibit A, tab 1, schedule 1 -- I am looking, in particular, at page 2, the latter half of the paragraph 2.

Do you have a copy of that?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, I do.

MR. MILLAR:  I will read the last sentence.  It says:
"Access prior to obtaining leave to construct is required to enable the early-access activities to commence in the spring of 2007 in order to meet the target in-service date for the new line in December 2011."

Spring obviously is gone now.  We're almost into August.  Can you comment on how -- even if you got the approval, if you were to get the approval, if you got it August 1st, we're obviously -- or you're obviously several months behind schedule on this.  Can you comment on if it's still feasible for you to do the activities that you say you need to do in a timely fashion, given that you have lost a few months?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  It is our position that we still can meet the December 2011 in-service date pursuant to getting on the lands this fall.  Yes, we have missed the spring of this year.  That's why we have extended the early access into the spring of 2009.

MR. MILLAR:  Okay.  So the issue was you needed two springs, and to get to that, you extended the deadline --

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. MILLAR:  -- to the early spring of 2009?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you for that.

MR. SKALSKI:  Just to elaborate, it is getting very tight, and our original early-access schedule had a bit of flexibility in it, but we have lost a lot of that flexibility to date.  So that is why, as Mr. Girard has indicated, it is very important that we do get access for at least the fall 2007 season.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.  If I could just have one quick moment to review my notes, I think I may be done.

Thank you, gentlemen.  Those are my questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Millar.  We will take a moment here and discuss the schedule for the remainder of the day and the order of cross-examination.

If I can just confirm the parties that wish to cross-examine in the order that I happen to have them written down.  Mr. Wellenreiter, you will be cross-examining?

MR. WELLENREITER:  I have maybe one, maybe two questions, very brief.

MS. NOWINA:  Very brief.  All right.  Mr. Ross?

MR. ROSS:  I will be cross-examining and I have several questions, but I should be in the 15- to 20-minute maximum.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. MacIntosh?

MR. MacINTOSH:  No, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Stephenson?

MR. STEPHENSON:  No, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken?

MR. MCMEEKEN:  Perhaps ten to 15 minutes.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. Fallis?

MR. FALLIS:  I will be cross-examining.

MS. NOWINA:  How long do you expect to take?

MR. FALLIS:  I would imagine it would be half an hour.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

MR. FALLIS:  I just indicate it depends on the answers, of course.

MS. NOWINA:  Of course, Mr. Fallis.  Mr. Waern?

MR. WAERN:  I will be asking a couple of questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Ten minutes, Mr. Waern?

MR. WAERN:  Ten minutes, 15 minutes, depending on the answers.

MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you.

Did the parties have any desire for order of cross-examination?  No thoughts on that?  None?

We will take one of the shorter cross-examinations now, and then we will take a morning break.  

We will expect our noon-hour break to be around -– lunch, around one o'clock for a lunch break.

So, Mr. Wellenreiter, do you have any opposition to going first?

MR. WELLENREITER: 
No.  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Go ahead.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. WELLENREITER:

MR. WELLENREITER:  My question is really a kind of clarification for me.  When the agent meets with the landowner for gaining access to the land, will they discuss the particular location on the land they intend to access from?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  We would be seeking, from the contractor, what area they were going in and the agent would be talking to the landowner about that, yes.

MR. WELLENREITER:  Will the landowner have a say as to where they would prefer, and will Hydro One work with them on that?

MR. THOMSON:  Absolutely.  I think one of the things that we want to ensure is that in gaining access onto the right-of-way, we are trying to minimize any -- like, if there's soil-testing equipment, whatever, if there's crops there or whatever, if there is an alternate access route, that we would try to, you know, work with the owner, and maybe that is our best way to get back to it, to minimize interruption.

MR. WELLENREITER:  With respect to structures, will Hydro One work with the landowner in terms of the placement of the structures where the new line would go?

MR. GIRARD:  That's something that we will discuss during early access.  Yes, we will discuss that with the owner.

It will be subject to the next proceedings, the leave to construct, about tower locations, but it is something we always discuss with owners, and we take their input and we have changed our policies over the last quite a few years, taking into account, especially in agricultural land, to be on fence rows and that sort of thing.

MR. WELLENREITER:  If there is an existing structure already there on the line that exists, for placement of the next structure, the new structure, if the landowner had -- you know, for ease of access or least interference with their work, you would consider that and take it into consideration as to your placement in your studies that you are doing now?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, we will.

MR. WELLENREITER:  As far as the survey work that you are doing and your access onto the land, is it your intention to wait until after harvest -- the farmers have harvested their crops or the landowner has harvested their crop, and then go on the land, or how does that -- what is your plan in that regard?

MR. GIRARD:  Depending on the location of the crop, where the surveyor will have to access and how he will have to access, yes, we want to minimize any interruption we have, any impact we have on the land.

MR. WELLUNREITER:  You would address that through your agent meeting with the landowner/farmer and discussing when and the timeline of when you would be doing your inspections?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's right.  Depending on whether it is the owner or a tenant, as Rob said earlier, we will discuss that with the owner and try our best to make accommodation.



MR. WELLENREITER:  So not for sure, but you will give deference to what the landowner would like, in terms of the timing of the inspection or the investigation that takes place.

MR. GISARD:  Yes, that's right.

MR. WELLENREITER:  Thank you.  I don't have any further questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Wellenreiter.  


Why don't we take Mr. McMeeken before break and then the order will take us -- Mr. Ross, Mr. Fallis and Mr. Waern after break or after lunch, depending on the order, and start with Mr. Ross after break.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Thank you, Madam Chair. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. McMEEKEN: 

MR. McMEEKEN:  Good morning, gentlemen.  Just before I start, if I might -- I apologize, it's a little unusual, but on behalf of my clients, I received by registered mail a photo of a property for where the new easement -- showing the existing easement, existing lines and proposed line.

Unfortunately, the one that I received was of my client's property.  If I may approach, I don't want to disclose any personal information.

MS. NOWINA:  Do you want to give those to the witnesses?


MR. McMEEKEN:  Yes, if I could return that to Hydro so they can send it out to the appropriate person.

MS. NOWINA:  Oh, all right.  Thank you.


MR. McMEEKEN:  Now, one of the issues that our friend from the -- lawyer for the OEB was asking about was some environmental questions.  I was just wondering, is there not a process by which the Ministry of the Environment or through the Ministry of the Environment that you would get approvals for conducting environmental studies?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, there is. 

MR McMEEKEN:  And if so, why are those measures not being taken, as opposed to through this forum?

MR. GIRARD:  We are conducting an environmental assessment, following the Environmental Assessment Act, and we will obtain our approvals through that Act.

One of the things that Hydro One feels is we need to access the lands.  What we're asking for here is permission to access the lands in order to verify information gathered from other sources.

It's the accessing of the land that we're asking for permission here.


MR. McMEEKEN:  Okay.  Perhaps I should clarify it, then.  Is there not something within the purview of the Ministry of the Environment that would give you some authority or that you could seek authority to access lands for the specific purpose of doing environmental studies?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, I only interrupt because it is a legal question he's asking the witnesses.  I would be happy to refer my friend to section 12.2 of the Environmental Assessment Act, which contemplates the types of activities that can be carried out prior to the approval that may issue under the Environmental Assessment Act.
Under that section, as we discussed on Motions Day, there was contemplation of two concepts:  One is surveying and the other is the ability of a party to acquire rights and property interests in lands.

So there is contemplation, in Hydro One's respectful submission, under the Environmental Assessment Act for activities to be carried out in advance of the approval process.  And this Act, your Act, has this other requirement that we are here today to satisfy.  And that is the requirement under section 98.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Thank you.

My one client owns and operates a rather large aggregate pit for which there is currently a transmission line or several transmission lines going through and which will be affected by this application, as well.

He is concerned about health and safety of workers and ongoing operation of his aggregate pit during access and construction, both.  But specifically access, at this time.
  Will there be any opportunity for him to supervise -- have somebody hired to supervise?  And if so, would Ontario Hydro be willing to compensate for the costs of such supervision?

MR. GIRARD:  If I can refer to Condition No. 8 of the conditions of approval.  We have agreed that landowners can be present to observe during early-access activities, subject to Hydro One's safety policies and the Occupational Health and Safety Act.

Understand that our people work on various properties, including ones similar to your client's, and in the past they are very well -- highly trained, and they have worked safely on similar properties.  So I can assure you that Hydro One has very strict health and safety policies and we will be following those.


MR. McMEEKEN:  What type of insurance, if any, will Hydro One be purchasing to protect my client against any liabilities which may occur while you're accessing his property?


MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  Hydro One is liable for any of its activities for its contracted agents or whatever they are doing on the owner's land.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Will my client be provided with any copies of insurance policies, Workers Comp or WSIB, Workers Safety & Insurance Board, confirmations, other evidence which would satisfy him that all proper precautions have taken place prior to accessing his property?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, I just want to be clear with my friend's question.  If it is related to liability for damages that are sustained by Hydro One in the conduct of early-access activities, that is specified as a statutory obligation under section 98(2) of the Act, that Hydro One is obligated to be liable for such damages.

If my friend's question is related to how it manages the affairs associated with that liability, I am not sure that that is a matter that is relevant to this proceeding.  That is a general question related to the overall affairs of Hydro One and none of these witnesses are available to speak to those sorts of insurance policy-type questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Maybe you can clarify the question?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Well, with the greatest respect, I think from the property owners' perspective, there is going to be visitors, as they have been described, on their property, visitors who can't really, let's face it -- who aren't wanted, but who are being thrust upon them and they don't want to have any responsibility for those visitors.
 I think those visitors should be required to be forthcoming and assuring and providing all evidence assuring the property owners that they have properly insured themselves against any type of liability which might -- liability for personal injury, liability for damages against the person's property, perhaps by posting of a bond, Workers Compensation issues prior to accessing that person's property, so that they can feel comfortable that supervision is not required.

If supervision is required, then that person should be compensated, not just be given the opportunity to watch.  And that is what my question is about.

I am asking whether Hydro One has made provisions to ensure that these things have happened.  And if so, are they going to disclose it to the property owners prior to access?

MS. NOWINA:  It seems to me there are three parts to your question, and Mr. Nettleton, can you tell me which one he is able to answer?

MR. McMEEKEN:  I apologize.  The bottom line is, the first part is:  Has Hydro One or are they taking steps to ensure that all persons entering upon the property are properly insured either for liability or for Workers Compensation?

The second part is:  Are they willing to produce that evidence to the property owners prior to access?

MS. NOWINA:  The reason I said there was three parts, because the first part is:  Who is liable?  And I believe it is that answer you received, that Hydro One is stating, through some section, Mr. Nettleton, that Hydro One is, indeed, liable.

The second two parts are:  How do they insure themselves?  And the third part, I believe, is:  Can you see evidence of that insurance; is that correct?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Yes.  Thank you, yes.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, how do you take those three questions?

MR. NETTLETON:  Again, maybe in reverse order, the third question being the question of liability and who is responsible.  Again, I hear my friend's argument.  I think it is framed as argument.  I think we can have that discussion in argument.

I am not sure it is a matter of evidence.  It is a matter of statutory interpretation and provision under section 98(2), and that is to say whether or not an applicant who has made application pursuant to section 98 is liable for damages.  And that is, indeed, what section 98(2) addresses.  There is no debate about that.

There is also, though, the provision of how that damage is ultimately determined, and that also is spelled out in the statutory scheme through the operation of section 100, and the Expropriations Act, as well.

So I am not sure my friend's question about who is responsible or who takes liability for loss, whether it is personal injury or any other variety of types of losses, is a relevant matter for evidence to be put to these witnesses.

I think the question -- the other two parts of his question about ensuring that Hydro One takes the necessary steps to ensure against such losses is, again, a matter that I am not -- that I would object to as being relevant to this proceeding, this early-access proceeding.  How Hydro One manages its affairs for all of the different types of losses that it is responsible for is a matter beyond the scope of this hearing related to whether or not early-access activities should be approved or not.

Those are my submissions, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  Any response to that?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Thank you.  I will move on.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Does Hydro One expect that any landowner should be restricted in their use of their property, lawful use of their property, prior to access?

MR. GIRARD:  No, we do not.

MR. McMEEKEN:  You are aware that my client's property is, in fact, an aggregate pit for which a section of that aggregate pit -- I apologize, I didn't bring additional copies, because I had to go to my client's house last night to get his copy that he received by courier.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken, when you're standing, you're not close to your mike.

MR. McKEENAN:  I apologize.  It is just habit.  I apologize for not having extra copies of the aerial photograph of my client's aggregate pit.

If you did have a copy before you, you would see that part of the pit is already being mined in the area of the proposed easement.

If my client were to continue to mine in that area, after you do your access, would you wish to have any prohibitions against him continuing with mining aggregate in the area of the proposed easement?

Have you put your minds to -- do you need to get orders restricting him from using his property in a lawful manner?

MR. THOMSON:  Is this for the early-access application or is this beyond?

MR. McMEEKEN:  Well, it is prior to the early access.  We believe that if he continues to mine, it is going to, perhaps, cause some difficulties for both you and he at a later date.  So my first question is:  Do you expect or do you wish to address with him, prior to the early access, dealing with issues of restrictions on the use of his property?

MR. THOMSON:  If we could just have a moment, Mr. McMeeken.

MR. GIRARD:  It is Hydro One's position that, first of all, we would not put any prohibitions on your client continuing his operations, however he plans to do them.

MR. McKEENAN:  Okay, thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  For clarification, for the access-to-land application?

MR. GIRARD:  For the access-to-land application.

One of the things we will do is, when our property agent goes out and discusses with him about our leave-to-construct application, we will talk about his future plans.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Okay, thank you.

This may be a question not for here, but I am just wondering, I have noted in the materials that this is a $600 million project.  Why such a great rush?

I can imagine that Hydro One's has been contemplating this for some time, and yet they make application to the end of March, and then immediately want access to people's property right away, for a $600 million project.

Could there not have been some type of greater timeline that let people have an opportunity to let it sink in and do their own studies prior to having to react to this?

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. McMeeken, we are acting on the urgings of the Ontario Power Authority to get moving on the approvals process related to this line.

The OPA provided a letter to Hydro One on March 22nd, which is included in the EB-2007-0050 application.  That's the leave-to-construct application for the line.

The OPA indicated that there is an urgent need for the line, and they asked Hydro One to take steps necessary to get the line in service by December 2011.  That is the reason for the rush.

MR. McMEEKEN:  Thank you, those are all of my questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. McMeeken.  

Before we break, it occurs to me, Mr. Waern, I should have asked yow about your schedule rather than putting you last.  The lawyers here are earning a living today.  You are not.

So I would like to take into consideration your timelines.  Do you have a preference of when you would do your cross-examination?

MR. WAERN:  I am quite happy to watch the lawyers perform before I ask my questions.  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  I thought that might be the case.  Thank you, Mr. Waern. 

Just a reminder:  We have had people coming in the room during the morning.  If you wish to make oral comments in this proceeding, if you would let Staff at the table outside know and we can make sure that you are scheduled to do so later in the day or tomorrow.

Thanks very much.  We will take a break now until 20 minutes past eleven.  

--- Recess taken at 11:00 a.m. 

--- Upon resuming at 11:25 a.m.

MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  Are there any preliminary matters before we begin?  Can you hear me?  I appear to have a new mike.

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I have a preliminary matter.

PROCEDURAL MATTERS:

MR. MILLAR:  With your permission, I know it's slightly unusual, I did wish to ask the Panel or Mr. Nettleton a follow-up question relating to Mr. McMeeken's question relating to the issues.

MS. NOWINA:  All right, Mr. Millar.  Thank you.

MR. MILLAR:  Again this was a question answered by Mr. Nettleton; I will pose it to the panel, but if he wishes to jump in or -- again I hate to keep lengthening his argument, but Mr. McMeeken asked you a number of questions about liability issues surrounding access to land.

I think, if I understood him, one of the questions he asked was:  What happens if a Hydro One employee is injured on a particular person's land?  They hurt themselves, and I think he was seeking assurance that the landowner, unless you know they set a trap for them or something like that, would not be liable for any injuries sustained or any -- to equipment or to people or anything like that, that may happen if Hydro One accesses someone's land.

So I think I heard an assurance that that wouldn't happen.  It seemed to me it was being sort of categorized as being put under damages, rather than insurance or some other type of thing. 

Again, I may have my facts wrong here so I am really just seeking some clarity on that.

So I guess the question is, what happens if a Hydro One worker or employee or agent is injured while conducting work or equipment for that matter, is injured or damaged while conducting work on someone's land and what assurance can be provided to landowners that, absent something terrible, that they intentionally injured someone, that absent something like that, they would not be held liable?

MR. NETTLETON:  This sort of reminds me of a law school type question, Madam Chair, personal injury torts.

Mr. Millar, I think the answer to that question is, again, a matter of law.  It is a question that relates to the proper interpretation afforded to section 98(2) of the Act, and is ultimately dependent upon the facts and circumstances arising.

If it is, as you have described it to be, a case where there is no contributory negligence, where there is no other potential causes of the loss, that is sustained and strictly a result of Hydro One's own doing, section 98(2) says that we are -- that the applicant is obligated to compensate for damages, and so the damages that would be sustained would be the responsibility of the applicant, Hydro One.

MS. NOWINA:  Maybe I can ask, Mr. Nettleton, even though those damages are to Hydro One's own equipment or own employees?

MR. NETTLETON:  And so the question then is:  Would there be recourse against other parties that would be caused by that loss?

MS. NOWINA:  That's the question.

MR. NETTLETON:  Again, I think it depends on the facts and circumstances arising.

If it was work carried out in the conduct of the early-access activities, then there would be no damages sustained to the -- or caused by the landowner.  It would be a result of the activities that the Hydro One employee and a matter between Hydro One, the contractor, and the contracting party, to work out in respect of how that activity was contracted for and procured.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you. 

Mr. Millar, does that answer your question?

MR. MILLAR:  Well, I think I have the answer.  Mr. Nettleton, relying on 98(1), he answered your follow up question relating to:  Does that include Hydro One?  I suspect that - I'm certainly not a torts expert and I don't know that Mr. Nettleton is either - I know there are varying standards of care with relation to property owners depending on why someone happens to be on your land.

So unless Mr. Nettleton has anything further to add, I think that is the answer to the question.

MR. RUPERT:  Can I just ask a follow up question, Mr. Nettleton, so I am clear on your reading of 98(2)?  That section, as I read it, says the damages on entry to land and so on, shall be determined by agreement or failing agreement, in the manner set out in section 100.  I am not sure I understand how 98(2) gets into this discussion, when this has to be an agreement in 98(2).  First of all, an agreement between who?  Would why would you have an agreement with a landowner to deal with damages to Hydro One's own equipment and employees?

MR. NETTLETON:  I think it is a good point of clarification.  Sir, I think that the issue of compensation for damages to lands that arise out of the conduct of the early-access activities, is a matter that is handled under section 98(2).

Following the chain of that statutory scheme, failing agreement, what happens as I read the legislation, is that it kicks over into the arbitration provisions of the Expropriation Act, by way of connection to section 100 of the Ontario Energy Board Act.  So there is a carry-over that failing agreement, then the matter is through heard arbitration proceedings.

So the damage amount is not subject to an agreed-upon amount.  There is a process contemplated as to how that damage amount is determined.

Now, that relates to -- as I understand it -- the case or the circumstances where there are damages to the property or alleged damages to property.  The issue that Mr. Millar is raising, and I believe your question raised as well, is what happens if Hydro One's own employees, in the course of carrying out, or its agents, in the course of carrying out activities, suffer harm?  Suffer damages as a result of that?  What happens then?

Again, my submission -- and again, I'm somewhat loathe to do this because this is evidence that should come in through the witnesses of Hydro One, and it may be best to take that as an undertaking of Hydro One's employees.  But my understanding is -- for the record, is that that would be a matter that would be considered in any procurement agreement or arrangement that Hydro One would make with its agents.

But that type of question, again, I would suggest may best be considered through -- by way of an undertaking.

MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Chaplin has a question as well.

QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:

MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Nettleton - or perhaps this is a question for the witnesses - in your easement agreements, do you have indemnity provisions?  And in the agreement that you are contemplating to offer where there is to be an access road, is there an indemnity provision?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, there is.

MS. CHAPLIN:  And typically in your easement agreements, would there be indemnity provisions?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Because I think that that might be relevant as you're going to be doing more limited work, but you will be accessing the land, and as I understand it, you are not proposing to offer the same indemnity provisions through these conditions; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, that's correct.  We're not proposing to get an access agreement for the access activities, that's correct.

So to the extent that there is not a clause covering indemnity in the terms and conditions, I suppose you are correct.

MS. CHAPLIN:  So the protection that is typically offered to landowners through easement agreements, that won't be present under the access-to-land scheme as it currently sits with these conditions; am I correct in that conclusion?

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry.  Again, just to clarify.  If we're talking about damages to landowners, right, then that is covered under section 98(2).

MS. CHAPLIN:  I'm not talking about damages to landowners.

MR. SKALSKI:  You're talking about damages to employees or contractors --

MS. CHAPLIN:  Yes, yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  -- who work on the land at the time?

MR. GIRARD:  Hydro One's policy is, is that if our 
own -- if our people go onto someone's land, as we do every day in carrying out maintenance activities, and there is an accident, as there sometimes is, much to our regret, we cover that, the damage to those people.  We cover their -- anything that has to be done to make it right.  Whether it is time off, or whatever.

We expect that in this case, the same provisions will apply.  If our employees go on the land and they trip and fall or are injured, the landowner will not be liable, but Hydro One will cover those costs.

I mean, yes, except in the case of negligence, which we don't anticipate.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. Nettleton, or Mr. Millar, do you think that we still need an undertaking on this?  Or is the response of the witness panel sufficient?

MR. MILLAR:  I think Hydro One has offered an undertaking.  If that would be helpful to the panel then I don't see any reason why we shouldn't accept one, unless -- Mr. Nettleton, is the company opposed to providing any additional information by way of undertaking?

MR. NETTLETON:  I think the answer that Mr. Girard provided addressed the question of who takes responsibility for losses incurred by Hydro One or its agents, whether it is the landowner or whether it is Hydro One.  And I am not sure if an undertaking can be any more fulsome than the response that Mr. Girard provided.

MS. NOWINA:  I will leave it to you, Mr. Nettleton.  If Hydro One, in discussions during the course of the day and before we complete the argument phase, thinks there is more information that would be helpful to the Board, then by all means by that forward as an undertaking.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  If not, we will let the record stand as it does.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken, sorry.

MR. McMEEKEN:  I apologize, since I started this whole thing, perhaps -- I have been thinking about it.  Perhaps I should clarify what my real interest was.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes.

MR. McMEEKEN:  I wanted to ensure that Hydro One was either insured under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, or that they are entitled to be self-insured and have elected to do so and that they are going to -- they are going to require any workers or agents or sub-contractors working for them to also be insured under the WSIA.

So, in other words, I wanted to ensure that all workers coming onto my client's property and other people's property are properly insured under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act, and that's the type of evidence I was looking for, and probably through my convoluted way, I asked the question and it got turned into something different.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Thank you for that clarification.  Maybe we can pose that question to ensure that it has been answered.

MR. NETTLETON:  I would suggest, Madam Chair, that that -- those two questions, then, form the subject matter of an undertaking.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Let's get the undertaking, then.

MR. NETTLETON:  We can answer those by way of undertaking.

MR. FALLIS:  Madam Chair, just a question, because it is not related to anything about my argument.  In the prefiled evidence material at -- I think it is called appendix 7 at tab 6, page 1 of 4, there is a document entitled "Access testing and associated access routes."

I heard the gentleman from Hydro One say there was no agreement.  There is a document in there that seems to be the document he says doesn't exist.  Can the Board enquire as to what the intention is with that agreement and how -- if it isn't an agreement, what it represents, if it isn't an agreement to access?

MS. NOWINA:  Perhaps, Mr. Fallis, we can leave that question for your cross-examination.

MR. FALLIS:  I am just referencing it because he said he didn't propose an agreement.  There is one in the prefiled evidence.  I just wondered if it would be appropriate to develop that now.  It is not part of my questions at this time, my particular point.

MS. NOWINA:  If it impacts the undertaking, Hydro One can --

Mr. NETTLETON:  I can help my friend out.

The early-access application was revised.  The subject matter of that revision related to a clarification of the agreement that Mr. Fallis is speaking to.

What the revision clarified was that that agreement is only in respect of the need for the construction of roads to access the widened corridor.

It is not an agreement that relates to, in any way, shape or form, a proposal by Hydro One for an agreement with every landowner along the widened corridor.  So the terms and conditions of that agreement are not relevant to the widened corridor and the activities that Hydro One is proposing in its application.

It was included to ensure that all landowners knew that there may be need for an access agreement to the widened corridor, but that is a matter separate and apart from the activities carried out on the widened corridor.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton. 

Mr. Ross.

MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I believe there was an undertaking.  Perhaps I should give it a number.

MS. NOWINA:  I'm sorry.  Yes, you should, Mr. Millar.

MR. MILLAR:  It is undertaking J1.1.  Mr. Nettleton, just for the clarity of the record and to assist the court reporter, could you give us a one-sentence summary of what the undertaking is for?

MR. NETTLETON:  The undertaking, as I understand it, is to provide a response to the questions posed by Mr. McMeeken regarding whether Hydro One is an entity that is the subject matter of Workers Compensation legislation and/or self-insurance against losses relating to the activities carried out by its employees or representatives that intend to carry out activities of early access on the lands.

MR. MILLAR:  Thank you.


UNDERTAKING NO. J1.1:  to provide response to 

question by Mr. McMeeken whether Hydro One is subject 

to Workplace Safety Insurance Act, or is self-insured

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Ross.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you, Madam Chair, members of the Board.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. ROSS:

MR. ROSS:  I am going to start off, if I can, following up on questions that Mr. McMeeken raised and I don't believe were answered in totality.

The first, and I found a very poignant question, was Mr. McMeeken asked if supervision of the works during the early access was to take place, would there be compensation paid by HONI, Hydro One, for the supervision.

The question was not answered.  There was an agreement that supervision is appropriate and acceptable, and you referred to your agreement, but no answer with regards to compensation.

MR. GIRARD:  The point I was making is that the landowners can be present to observe early-access activities, not to supervise their employees.

Our employees are supervised and knowledgeable in the activities they carry out, and work in safe and -- manner, and we feel they don't require supervision.  There would be discussions with the landowners, through the property agent, to address any specific concerns property owners have, and we'll take those into account in doing our work.  But we do not anticipate that the landowners -- that it is necessary for the landowners to be on the property to supervise the activities of our employees or agents.

MR. ROSS:  During the landowners -- I guess we agreed potentially on the term "oversight" or "observation".  If not supervision, then that's fine, I don't have a problem with that.  But during the landowner's oversight of the early access works, is there compensation intended for that landowner's time expended as a result of that oversight, oversight on their private property?

MR. GIRARD:  No, there is no compensation intended for that.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  Just to finish up the insurance question.  I'm sorry to belabour the point.

We reached almost every hypothetical question in the torts exam, except for one, and that would be third-party occupier's liability.  This is an instance where HONI work is underway -- someone wanders onto the owner's property, falls into a pit.

Is there an indemnification?  Would damages then accrue to HONI as a result of that?  Would there be an undertaking to indemnify as a result of damages that are occasioned in that manner?

MS. NOWINA:  Everyone is looking at you, Mr. Nettleton, including your witness panel.

MR. NETTLETON:  I would suggest that that also be -- the problem, Madam Chair, is these witnesses are not experts in insurance matters.  What I would like to propose is that that question also be the subject matter of an undertaking.

MS. NOWINA:  That makes sense.  Do you want to include it in the same undertaking?

MR. NETTLETON:  I'm not sure.  Mr. Millar, what is your preference?

MR. MILLAR:  Why don't we give it a new undertaking, just so it is clear, undertaking J1.2?

UNDERTAKING NO. J1.2:  HYDRO ONE TO PROVIDE 

INFORMATION ON THIRD-PARTY LIABILITY DURING ACCESS 

ACTIVITIES

MS. NOWINA:  That's to do with third-party injury; is that right, Mr. Ross?

MR. ROSS:  That's correct, and then obviously the effect it would have on occupier's liability, owner/occupier's liability.

Thank you for the undertaking.

I am going to move now, if I could, just generally to questions that were raised during the examination-in-chief and some of the cross-examination by my friend, Mr. Millar.

I believe that the majority of my questions are going to be directed at you, Mr. Girard, unless I suggest otherwise or unless you feel there is someone more appropriate to answer the question.

This might be somewhat disorganized.  As I said, it came from re-examination thus far.


You indicated, Mr. Girard, that you consider yourself to be a guest on the property of the owners and you want to sort of create a relationship into that; correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. ROSS:  The real distinction that we're dealing with here is that if you're granted access, a guest can be excluded, whereas you could not?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  I think the word I used is we will act as a guest.

MR. ROSS:  But in fact you would usurp the private property owner's right to exclusion, if the access is granted?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. ROSS:  Just to extend that point a little bit.  The notice that you are providing to the landowners of your intended access to their lands, this is really a courtesy once access is granted; correct?

MR. GIRARD:  No.  I think it will -- if the condition is applied and we are in agreement with it, it will be a condition of the approval, the notice.

MR. ROSS:  So you intend on that being made a part of the order for early access?

MR. GIRARD:  If the Board so orders.

MR. ROSS:  I am now going to move to discuss the purpose of early access.  You have been kind enough to go through it very generally with us, and I am just going to try to focus a little bit, if I could.

The purpose of the early access is to determine the route and structure sites; is that correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's right, it is to define the widened corridor.

MR. ROSS:  And this is done through various testing and survey activities?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, it is.

MR. ROSS:  And some of these attendances will cause damage to the property.

MR. GIRARD:  We feel that the activities that will be conducted will be minimal on the properties.

MR.ROSS:  But some of them will cause damage.


MR. GIRARD:  Yes, and there is provision in the Act to compensate for that damage.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  We've been -- there has been some conversation about land agents and that -- Mr. Thomson, you may want to deal with this -- there will be land agents and that those agents will be the contact individual.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. ROSS:  In the instance the owner has any problem with the early access, could you describe to us what the land agent does?  What the scope of their role is?

MR. THOMSON:  I would classify them as a single point of contact.  Certainly in my experience through working on major projects, that owners want one person that they can phone, from the beginning of the project right through to the end of the project.

And that agent will, right now as we speak, has already been out contacting landowners as follow-ups to the public information centres that in a lot of cases, you know, people wondered what the status of it was since the information centres.  There have been contacts with owners, and we will continue to have contacts through the early-access process, follow-ups.  The owners have the names and telephone numbers of each of their -- of the assigned agents that will be assuming their name or their file.
They will also follow through with the land acquisition process and negotiate settlements, and then also through the construction phase.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  What's the land agents' authority to stop early-access work based on the comments of the owners?

MR. THOMWON:  I don't understand.  Stop --

MR. ROSS:  Cause a cease and desist of work being carried out during early access if they get a call from he landowners; what is their ability to stop the contractor?

MR. THOMSON:  I think it would be, that we would be immediately in touch with whoever it was that and find out what the circumstances were, and immediately try to resolve the issue with the owner.

MR. ROSS:  Would the work be stopped in the interim?

MR. THOMSON:  It's possible.  I'm not sure.  I mean, if it's of -- I'm not sure of the nature of what the complaint might be; if it's something where we've entered on and the gate was left opened or something, then I mean obviously we would try to resolve that very quickly.
Without knowing the circumstance, I can't really answer it.  But I think the idea would be we would resolve it very quickly.  We would resolve it quickly and to the owner's satisfaction.

MR. ROSS:  Do you agree it would make sense to err in favour of stopping the work while you ascertained the potential damage, than to continue while you're figuring it out; correct?

MR. THOMSON:  As I said, I m not sure -- if maybe you could cite a specific circumstance where maybe I could visualize what --

MR. ROSS:  I don't think it is really fair to put a hypothetical to you.  I'm simply suggesting in the common sense perspective, if there is a fundamental concern about damage related to the land agent by the owner, it would make more sense to stop the work until the damage is ascertained.  At that point, you have the opportunity to say: yes, it's nominal; no, it is serious.  Do you agree?

MR. THOMSON:  I think how I would answer your question is, I wound find out or the land agent would find out the circumstance.  And if it required stopping it, then we would do that.  If it didn't require stopping it, then we would not.

MR. ROSS:  So the work would continue until the land agent determined what was going on?

MR. THOMSON:  Land agent and -- I mean, as we talked about earlier with the notification and contact with the owner, they're going to be on the spot quickly.

MR. ROSS:  What do you mean by quickly?

MR. THOMSON:  Well, if the owner has a complaint, he's going to call the agent at that time.  So the agent will, at that point, address -- immediately be in contact with whoever the individual was that was on the property and find out what the circumstance is.

MR. ROSS:  So just practically speaking, when a land agent has a property that has been given notice of the five-day window, that land agent will be available at all times for those five days between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. to any of the affected lands?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. ROSS:  And that would be by telephone or --

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. ROSS:  What of the credentials of the land agents? Who makes up the body of land agents?  What are they?

MR. THOMSON:  They have been contracted out through Hydro.  They will be responsible -- I will be working on this project as a coordinator for Hydro One, and their responsibility, they have varying degrees of background.  Some of them Ministry, former government employees, et cetera.  So their backgrounds vary, but they have extensive experience with land acquisition.

MR. ROSS:  We're not talking like university summer students or anything like that?

MR. THOMSON:  No.

MR. ROSS:  I beg the Board's indulgence for a moment.

We heard about -- again this may be appropriate for you, Mr. Girard -- we heard about the activities to take place, the different forms of testing to take place.  But I don't believe there was an order determined.

It would strike me that -- and tell me whether you agree -- that the environmental assessments will take place first; correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Depending on the property, no.  It will just depend on each property.  There's 450 properties to enter, between Bruce generating station and Milton.  It's 180 kilometres, and to be flexible, to allow us to be flexible in our work, we will enter the properties doing various activities at various times.

So depending on the specific properties, it's very difficult to say right now which will be the first activity.  What we will do is we will -- through our property agents -- we will be talking to the owners, and either orally or written we will be notifying them of the activities that will take place.

MR. ROSS:  So potentially there could be core drilling samples prior to an environmental check of the land.

MR. GIR:  More than likely it would be the survey activities that would take place, defining the limits of the widened corridor.  That will be one of the first activities.  So people know just how much property are we talking about when we're talking about widening.

Specific owners that have buildings and fixtures close to the edge of the right-of-way have already been asking us:  How close is it to my building?  Is my building, is this specific building going to be on the widened corridor or not?  And the best way to determine that is by doing a survey.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  Just so we understand the intention of the process, and I think it's already been articulated, but just to punctuate it.  The early access, once the early-access testing and surveying is complete, there is going to be a request to expropriate the selected route for the purposes of obviously putting the structure in and stringing the line; correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. ROSS:  And then this would trigger the expropriation process?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. ROSS:  A great deal of the planning of this project, from what I understand, depends on the locations acceptable for the project itself; correct?  For the structures, et cetera, they can't just be placed anywhere.

MR. GIRARD:  We have flexibility in locating them, but they do have to be in a certain -- within a certain area, yes.

MR. ROSS:  To consider alternate routes at the early-access stage would make more sense than coming back and duplicating the process, wouldn't you agree?

MR. GIRARD:  No.  What we have right now is, we have a reference route, which we're asking for permission for early access.

We want to enter those lands to develop and carry out these activities for this, what we call reference route.

MR. ROSS:  The OPA, the Ontario Power Authority, determined the reference route; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, they did, in consultation with Hydro One, yes.

MR. ROSS:  In the interrogatories, one of the questions asked was about alternative -- alternate routes.  Maybe I will direct to it -- excuse me for a moment.

It's the Powerline Connections Interrogatory 8, list 1, and I will just read from it.  And it's actually an excerpt from Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 5, appendix 4 of the 0050 materials:
"The Ontario Power Authority stated that the Bruce-to-Milton line is 'the only transmission alternative that meets the overall need to transmit the existing and committed generation in the Bruce area to facilitate the development of future resources both in the Bruce area and north of Barrie to be consistent with provincial landuse policy.'"

Et cetera, et cetera.  So you agree that it is the OPA here who is saying -- and it is quoted in your response to interrogatories -- the OPA that said:  This is the route.  This must be the route?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.  The OPA did an analysis and came up with the proposal for the reference route, that's correct.

MR. ROSS:  What's the scope of your knowledge about this analysis conducted by the OPA?

MR. SKALSKI:  I am aware that the OPA spent a fair bit of time in planning, in looking at transmission options in the Bruce area.

The OPA published their discussion document -- in fact, a series of discussion documents that were released over the course of 2006.  Specifically transmission discussion paper number 5 dealt with transmission options and there is a section in there dealing with the Bruce area.

So that formed the basis of the OPA's background work on providing transmission option in the area.

Then from there, I believe the OPA went into more detail in their subsequent planning and did, at a high level, look at alternative routes; and, for the reasons mentioned in their letter to Hydro One and also, I think, mentioned in a high level in transmission paper number 5, they eliminated the alternative routes and came to the conclusion that the Bruce-to-Milton option was the only one, as they say, that meets the various needs and objectives for the project.

MR. ROSS:  Just so I understand the institutional roles here, the distinction between the OPA and Hydro 
One -- OPA purchases and sells power, correct?  That's what they do.

MR. SKALSKI:  I believe, yes, they do sell -- they do buy long-term contracts.

They are responsible for ensuring adequate supply in the long term.  It's the IESO that has that responsibility for the short term.

MR. ROSS:  Yes.  So the IESO runs the day-to-day system.  Ontario's day-to-day electrical system is maintained and managed by the IESO.  The long-term contracts for the provision of power are created and maintained by the OPA in fellowship with the provider, so Bruce in this instance?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's correct.

MR. ROSS:  Then Hydro One creates the transmission capabilities?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's right.  We build and operate the transmission system.

MR. ROSS:  So it would make sense that the line choice, the route choice, would be determined by Hydro One, the transmitter?

MR. SKALSKI:  Well, it's a joint responsibility because -- and the OPA is responsible for putting together its IPSP, integrated power system plan; right?

And that plan is going to be filed very soon, we expect, in 2007.  And that, if you will, is the grand plan, the five-year look at requirements for generation and transmission and so on for the integrated system.  So that's the driving force.

The OPA has indicated in the material that has been filed, in the leave to construct case, that the Bruce project was part of the development work of the IPSP, but it had to be moved forward in order to meet the timelines.

So in going back to the IPSP, in developing a plan, the OPA also has responsibility to do environmental due diligence under the regulations requiring development of the IPSP.  So that's why it is the OPA that has the lead in also looking at routes, because obviously that is part of the EA due diligence that they have to do.

MR. ROSS:  Route selection in consultation with the OPA, that's a new thing as a result of the birth of the OPA, correct?  Like, before it would have been Hydro -- previously Hydro One that would have determined routes?



MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, just before my witness answers that question, I just want to clarify my friend's question.

Is he talking about routes, like specific line routes, or is he speaking to corridors, because, again, the IR that he referred to - that is, Powerline Connections Interrogatory No. 8 - makes the distinction between routes and corridors and, indeed, that the corridor is the one that the OPA has established?

I just want to be clear what -- are we talking about routes or corridors?  I think there is an important distinction there.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Ross.

MR. ROSS:  I think we're talking about both.  And if need be, we can break it down into routes and corridors.

I understand my friend's question, specifically that an alternative route can be contained within the existing corridor, and I appreciate and acknowledge that point.

Just for the sake of ease, why don't we work with the idea of corridors, and I will move on from this point?

If the corridor were broader -- we're now talking corridor and I thank my friend for the clarification.  If the corridor were broader, if the "green area" on the maps we all have were broader for early access, that would provide you greater flexibility in terms of alternate routes, would it not?

MR. SKALSKI:  Just to clarify, Mr. Ross, you mean, for example, if instead of the 175 foot, 202 foot widened right-of-way that we are proposing, we expanded the boundary to a larger area?

MR. ROSS:  Yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  So a kilometre or two kilometres or ten kilometres?

MR. ROSS:  Yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  That's what you're talking about?

MR. ROSS:  Yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  I'm sorry, your question is?

MR. ROSS:  If you did have a wider corridor, it provides for greater flexibilities in determining alternate route and structure site placement?

MR. SKALSKI: I suppose in an ideal world, perhaps it would, but, again, in order to meet our timelines and given the amount of environmental due diligence that has already occurred for this route, we don't think that is necessary.

MR. ROSS:  And just to clarify, you referred to "our timelines".  In reality, it is OPA's timelines?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.  It's collectively the timelines.  The OPA has suggested to Hydro One that we should work as quickly as possible to get the line in place to meet a 2011 in-service date.

MR. ROSS:  And I believe it was you who pointed it out, and you are exactly right, you have been to a certain extent -- and I'm paraphrasing -- conceptualizing, because you have been put behind the eight ball, in that you received a letter on the 27th of March of this year.  I believe your application was filed within days of that, which is relatively impressive.  But the reality is that we've had four months from that date to this to get to where we are.

That is a relatively fast turnaround for everyone involved; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Well, we were actually hoping it would go a bit quicker.  That is why there was the reference to the spring 2007 access to land that we included in the application.

It was our hope that we could get onto land for the spring season this year, but that was --

MR. ROSS:  I am going to move on to the actual -- the purpose of the early access in terms of the project itself.  I'm not talking about the construction, the leave to construct.  If I cross any routes or corridors, I will ask that my friend stop me.

The new lines contemplated that you are doing early access to determine the sites are 500 kilovolts; is that right?

MR. GIRARD:  That's correct.

MR. ROSS:  That translates into, round numbers here, approximately 1,500 megawatts?

MR. GIRARD:  It's around something in that order, 12 to 1,500 -- 1,200 to 1,500.

MR. ROSS:  That is two units of Bruce to produce that?

MR. GIRARD:  Well, there is --

MR. SKALSKI:  The line is being put in place also to accommodate additional wind generation.  The committed wind is, according to the evidence, 725 megawatts.  There is also provision for another 1,000 megawatts of wind.

So the capacity of the line is in excess of 1,500 megawatts, which is just the amount of additional generation at Bruce nuclear that is coming on.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  If you are able to comment on this, the current cost to the OPA for the juice that will be eventually running down these lines is about 63 bucks per megawatt hour?
  MR SKALSKI:  I don't have those figures.  I'm sorry.

MR. ROSS:  Mr. Girard, I just want to get some terms of reference.  I have heard the word "right-of-way" or the expression "right-of-way" used a couple of times.

Could you explain to me what you mean by right-of-way?

MR. GIRARD:  What I mean by that is, the widened corridor.

MR. ROSS:  So the existing easement corridor is the corridor?  And then the widened corridor is the green area on the maps that we're all discussing?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's the widened -- the existing corridor, where the existing lines are we would call that, we would refer to that as a right-of-way.  We have rights to go on that land to build, to operate and maintain the existing transmission lines.

Then there is the widened corridor, which is the additional 53 to 61 metres of property that this application applies to.

MR. ROSS:  And the -- much of the existing corridor or right-of-way is, in fact, easements in favour of Hydro One; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  Correct.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. ROSS:  And easements have been used in the past in the expropriations relating to the transmission lines along which this widened corridor runs?

MR. THOMSON:  The one, the corridor that we built or right-of-way that we built in the late Seventies was expropriated for the original lines.  It was built in -- right-of-way at the top end is what you're referring to?

MR. ROSS:  Yes, yes, thank you.  I'm talking now about the easements expropriated, which are concomitant to what is now referred to as the widened corridor.

Those easements allow, as you said, Hydro to construct towers, string lines and maintain those towers; correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, yes.  That's correct.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  The owners of those lands, the easement lands -- so the servient tenement, they're not allowed to stop that work from taking place, are they?

MR. THOMSON:  This is on the existing easement?

MR. ROSS:  Correct.

MR. THOMSON:  I guess the question is, are you referring to maintaining it or --

MR. ROSS:  Sure, yes.

MR. THOMSON:  We have the right under the easement to maintain – construct, operate and maintain the facility.

MR. ROSS:  That would obviously include -- the owners aren't allowed to preclude Hydro One representatives from going onto that piece of land.

MR. THOMSON:  To maintain our facility, yes.

MR. ROSS:  Right.  In order to facilitate this expropriation back in the Seventies, the owners received compensation?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, they did.

MR. ROSS:  And the easements that we've just been discussing, they don't have anything in the easement agreement that allows you to go onto the land for the purpose of early access to concomitant lands for building subsequent towers, do they?

MR. THOMSON:  No, they do not.

MR. ROSS:  And the corridor that we're talking about.

MR. THOMSON:  The widened right–of-way.

MR. ROSS:  The widened corridor we're talking about, it crosses public access routes, and in some instances is landlocked; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  Where the right-of-way crosses through certain areas we may cross road allowances but obviously there are areas that aren't accessible to roads.  The line does cross from a diagonal direction from the Bruce down to what we call Colbeck junction, which is in a diagonal fashion.  So obviously there is going to be parcels of land that are going to be landlocked.

MR. ROSS:  The Board's indulgence.

MS. NOWINA:  Certainly.

MR. ROSS:  Has Hydro One entered into any early-access agreements with individuals that allow for compensation for early access, other than the one that was filed today?  The question is this:  Have there been any agreements struck with landowners for compensation for early access?

MR. THOMSON:  For early access, no.

MR. ROSS:  Aside from compensation, have there been any agreements entered into that differ from the terms that were filed this morning?

MR. NETTLETON:  Sorry, just to understand your question.  Are you asking:  Are the terms and conditions that Hydro One has filed as an update to B1.5, are they different for other landowners?

MR. ROSS:  Have there been any access agreements other than the ones that are being filed that we're not aware of?

MR. NETTLETON:  I think, just -– the terminology here.  There is no access agreement.  I think the witness has answered that question saying there are no access agreements.

What is proposed is a common set of terms and conditions that the Board would then apply that would affect all landowners.  So if the question is:  Are there different terms and conditions for different landowners, separate and apart, I just wanted to clarify.  Is that the question?

MR. ROSS:  That is it.

MR. NETTLETON:  Perhaps the witnesses could answer that question.

MR. SKALSKI:  No, there are no different terms and conditions that will apply to different landowners.  We propose that the terms and conditions will apply to all landowners.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  I am almost finished.  Thank you. 

The only access agreement that has been discussed that exists in realty is the one that would be used for the purpose of, when there has to be a road built, for example to access the widened corridor.  That does still exist.  It is in the materials; correct?


MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.  Just to clarify, we will use that if we need to build a road or if we need to get access from off-corridor, onto the corridor.  So in other words if we have to use a landowner's driveway to get onto the widened corridor, that is an access route.  We don't have to build a road, but we do need that access route and we will use the agreement for that purpose, as well.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  In the instance that you have to build an access route, is Hydro One willing to undertake to have that access route removed prior to termination date of the early access?

MR. GIRARD:  We have examined this right-of-way and at this time, Hydro One feels we will not have to build -- build any access routes.

If we do, it will be subject to negotiation with the landowner and we will discuss it and agree to it at that time.

But at this time, that's why, in doing the soil testing, we are using tracked vehicles, and so they do not require the building of an access road.  There will be -- Rob, my colleague, Rob Thomson referred to landlocked parcels where we may have to come from off corridor access routes, but we intend to discuss that and come to agreement with the landowner and use those routes.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Ross, if you don't mind, we will interject a small question.  Can you explain what a tracked vehicle is and what impact it has on the land?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  Soil-testing rig is -- the soil-testing equipment is, it's about 25 feet long, about 8 feet wide, and instead of wheels, it has tracks similar to a snowmobile track.

So it has a very small print on the land, and has minimal -- it does minimal impact on the land.  That's why we're using them.

MS. NOWINA:  It doesn't require a road to move on.

MR. GIRARD:  It does not require a road.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

MR. GIRARD:  The roads people are talking about are usually built during construction of the transmission line.  They are there for us to enter with equipment to install foundations for concrete trucks, and that sort of equipment, which is much heavier.

This has a very small imprint.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Sorry, Mr. Ross.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you for the clarification.

Just to use another analogy, if it is fair.  The tracks would be similar to those on a tank; correct?

MR. GIRAZD:  Similar to those on a snowmobile, yes.

MR. ROSS:  Mitigation of damage.  We have been talking about damages that are occasioned as a result of the early access and obviously I am assuming -- and correct me if I'm wrong -- Hydro One will do everything to prevent damage from occurring in the first place.

MR. GIRARD:  That's correct.

MR. ROSS:  And that would be including, for example, building culverts to maintain waterways, where necessary?

MR. GIRARD:  That's correct.

MR. ROSS:  Because the damages section is slightly vague, I just wanted to clarify whether the damages would be monetary or whether there would be a restitutionary remedy.  So what I mean by that, if I may, is, for example, if there's soil compaction, would there be an analysis as to what the damage dollar value to the soil is, or would there be a remedy to the compaction itself, or would it be a combination of the two?

MR. THOMSON:  That would be a discussion that we would have with the landowner.  If it's monetary, we would certainly settle up monetarily.  We may have equipment that we may be able to try to restore.  Those are types of things we could certainly discuss with the landowner and establish what is the best method to do it.

MR. ROSS:  For the purposes of damages, does Hydro One include aesthetic to the land, so leaving behind detritus as a result of the bush cutting that may take place, et cetera?

MR. NETTLETON:  Now, Madam Chair, we're broaching into the land of interpretation of statutes.

Section 98(2) says:

"any damages resulting from an entry onto land carried out under subsection 1," that is the early access, "shall be determined by agreement or, failing agreement, in the manner prescribed in section 100."

My submission is that when we get into areas of different damages, we're effectively treading on an area that is contemplated to be the subject matter of negotiation and ultimately referral to an arbitration panel.

I am not sure these witnesses -- it is appropriate for these witnesses to be asked questions about the various kinds of damages and whether or not different types of damages will be compensable or not.

I think the witnesses have answered saying that is a matter for negotiation.  We should leave that area there.

MS. NOWINA:  That's fine, Mr. Nettleton, but I don't mind if the witnesses answer the question.

MR. NETTLETON:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair, I thought Mr. Thomson said that.  That's why I interrupted at that time.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  As I said, it is a matter of negotiation with a landowner to try to either remedy the situation through monetary means, meaning if it's a loss in crop, or if we have equipment that maybe we could restore it, we will also do that, too, depending on -- But that is strictly in discussions with the land -- the property owner.

MR. ROSS:  Would you agree that if you are able to contract for early access with the landowners, the need for Board approval for early access would be rendered moot?

MR. SKALSKI:  You mean if we voluntarily entered into agreements with landowners, then we wouldn't need to seek an interim order from the Board?

MR. ROSS:  Yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  That's true.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.

MR. SKALSKI:  The reason we didn't is because of the sheer number of properties involved and the urgency of the timelines.  There were just too many properties involved here, as Mr. Girard mentioned, I believe around 450 properties.

To try to secure agreements on a voluntary basis with landowners in the amount of time we have just was not feasible.

MR. ROSS:  And there has been no access agreement forwarded to the Board or to the interested parties for approval or for ratification by order, has there?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, because we think that the terms and conditions will govern access.

So that forms as an alternative to the provisions of an agreement, we think.

MR. ROSS:  It was also because without the offer of compensation, the chances of having people enter into a contract with you is slim to none; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  I don't think that was a motivator behind our approach.  It was really the timelines and the number of properties.

MR. ROSS:  Thank you.  Thank you to the Board.  Those are my questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Ross.  Mr. Fallis.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FALLIS:

MR. FALLIS:  Madam Chair, members of the Board, I would like to direct my questions to Mr. Thomson predominantly, and unless I ask the others or Mr. Thomson feels it is better answered by someone else, my questions will be to him.

First of all, Mr. Thomson, do you agree that your answers bind Hydro One Networks?

MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry?

MR. FALLIS:  Do you agree that the answers you will give to the questions I'm putting to you will bind Hydro One?

MR. THOMSON:  The answers that I provide are Hydro One policy and practice, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  I asked you the question:  Do they bind Hydro One?  Perhaps your counsel could assist in that answer.

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, at the outset, and I know Mr. Fallis wasn't here, but this witness has adopted the evidence as his evidence on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc. in this proceeding.  So he is here speaking on behalf of and answering questions on behalf of Hydro One Networks Inc., his employer.

MV. FALLIS:  I accept that.

Now, Mr. Thomson, my understanding is that you have had a long-time experience with this area and the fact that you were employed formerly by Ontario Hydro in the 1970s in land acquisition.

MR. THOMSON:  I was.

MR. FALLIS:  I understand that in the course of that engagement back in the Seventies, when the 500 kV line was put in from the Bruce to Colbeck to Milton at Bradley junction, that we may have met at that point in time.  I don't particularly recall, but we have both aged a bit in the meantime, I suppose.

With respect, would I be correct that you have been involved with major land acquisitions undertaken by Ontario Hydro?  Up to 1999, when it was restructured, you had been involved with a lot of different acquisitions?

MR. THOMSON:  I have been involved in a number of the major acquisitions, particularly in the Seventies and the Eighties.  I went to region in the mid-Eighties to about the late 1990s.

MR. FALLIS:  Just for information purposes, the last major transmission line that was constructed by Ontario Hydro or Hydro One was of a length of 500 kV-size line.  When was that last constructed?

MR. THOMSON:  I believe it was in the mid 19 --

MR. GIRARD:  It was in the 1990s, in the mid-1990s, and it was built between Lennox generating station and Bowmanville switching station.

MR. FALLIS:  I see.  This was all before the Ontario Energy Board was created and the existence of Ontario Power Authority; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Not before the OEB's time, but before the OPA's time, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  My understanding is the OEB was created in 1998; is that correct?

MS. NOWINA:  Just for clarification, the Ontario Energy Board has existed for some time, but we only began to regulate the electricity sector in this manner at that time.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Now, sir, in the past -- and I had experience back in the Seventies.  It seemed to me that Ontario Hydro, although there was controversy, was while it existed very respectful of property rights of landowners in its various dealings with them in easement acquisition for transmission purposes.  Would you agree with that?

MR. THOMSON:  I would.

MR. FALLIS:  Would you agree with me that the property rights of landowners is still respected by Hydro One as it was by -- previously by Ontario Hydro?

MR. THOMSON:  With the various projects that have been undertaken since the Bruce-to-Milton, each line was approved on the basis of -- by a consolidated hearing board, I believe was the one in the Eighties.  But with each project, they examined various facets of compensation, along with the routing.

MR. FALLIS:  Sir, with respect to this particular line, you have indicated -- and I have heard evidence this morning -- that there are property agents that have been engaged by Hydro One under contract and that you are supervising those agents.  I gather that they report through you?

MR. THOMSON:  I would be the contact from the Hydro One side, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  That is, again, to deal with the property owners and with respect to their concerns and the rights, and the like, to deal with land acquisition and talk about their problems as they perceive it?

MR. THOMSON:  Correct.  At this phase right now, our focus is on the early access, getting out, talking to the owners, identifying what activities will take place, and so at this time that's -- that has been our --

MR. FALLIS:  You personally also have been involved with talking to some of the landowners along the way?

MR. THOMSON:  I have, yes.  I have.  And some of them, I was the representative at the public information centre.  So a lot of the owners have seen me at that time.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, with respect to the company or the contracting party, I understand it is a corporation and they have hired these individuals?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, they have.

MR. FALLIS:  What is the name of the corporation, sir?

MR. THOMSON:  Dell -- I can't remember.  I will have to get the name for you.

MR. FALLIS:  Dell –- well, if you could undertake.


MR. THOMSON:  I will get the name for you.

MR. FALLIS:  With respect to their -- as they are an independent corporation and under dealings, did they have, I guess in the same -- maybe on the questions of the liability issue, are they covered under Hydro One's liability or do they carry their own level of liability insurance.


MR. THOMSON:  I am not an expert on the procurement process, but my understanding would be -- is that obviously through the procurement process they would have to have met certain obligations for liability, et cetera.  But I am not familiar with --

MS. NOWINA:  I believe that is, that will covered by the undertaking.  Correct, Mr. Nettleton?

MR. NETTLETON:  Yes, ma'am.

MR. FALLIS:  Thank you.

Now, do you have the green prefiled evidence with you, the big book?  The huge binder?  I have never been provided with a good one, I've got one with two good rings, but one that doesn't meet here.  That's a little bit of problem.

MR. THOMSON:  Which application are you speaking of?

MR. FALLIS:  This is the totality of the transmission.

MS. NOWINA:  Is that for the leave-to-construct application, Mr. Fallis?

MR. FALLIS:  That is the leave-to-construct application, but I am just going to the maps there, because it is what we're talking about, I do believe.

I will just take a map as an example, there's a map for Brockton.  Perhaps I can just hold the map up and you can look at the map.  It's a map entitled Brockton, I don't know if it has a number on it.  But that's the --



MR. SKALSKI:  There should be a number on the top, right, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  This map happens to be 07-04 Brockton, would that be good enough for record purposes?

Sir, with respect to the map, there is a large section in that municipality that is there, there is a green line that runs -- a green area running across, which is -- has been identified as the new land required.

And there are, there is orange lands that are sort of orangey-brown lands that are adjacent to it.  And I believe that they represent the lot configured underneath the land where the new land is required.  Is that correct?

I can --

MR. THOMSON:  Yes, I'm --

MR. FALLIS:  I will bring it over to you.  You can use your map.

[Witness panel confers]

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, you can take your seat while they confer.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  Just in reading -- and discussing with my colleagues, the green area is the new widened corridor or the new land area, and the orange is identified as the affected landowner parcel.  But I can -- yes.  I just looked to Andrew because he was involved in some of the putting together.

MR FALLIS:  Just parking the question for a moment.  Sorry, I --

I'm sorry, I wasn't here when you introduced yourself at the beginning.

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Skalski.

MR. FALLIS:  Mr. Skalski, you indicated on the 23rd of March you get your marching orders from the OPA to make an application to the Board for leave and also for access, I gather; is that correct?  23rd of this year.

MR SKLSKI:  We got a letter from OPA asking us to begin the approvals process as quickly as possible.

MR. FALLIS:  I notice all of the documents that are here in that big binder were filed March 29th.  That seems at the speed we're going here, that seems to be, it was a miracle on Fifth Avenue to be able to in six days produce that book.

Do you agree that book was actually well underhand and all of the diagrams and so forth well in advance of that because you at Hydro One knew what your task was well before that formal request was made?

MR. SKALSKI:  We call it the miracle on Bay Street, by the way, not Fifth Avenue, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  Whatever.  It's still a miracle.

MR. SKALSKI:  Sure.  We had had discussions with the OPA.  We had to have those discussions in advance, because we were involved in jointly planning and looking at alternatives.  So we were aware that the OPA was likely to come forward with a recommendation.  But until we received the letter on March 23rd, we did not have any clear direction from the OPA that that was their final choice regarding the recommended route.

MR. FALLIS:  All right.  Now, the -- I was asking you, do you agree with Mr. Thomson the green strip on the sketch skates that land where Hydro One seeks leave to construct its 500 kV line for the corridor, these applications and for which you seek access; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.  That's the area that we're seeking access for.

MR. FALLIS:  From the evidence, it is approximately 180 kilometres long, according to your material, and it is running from 175 feet to 600 feet in width; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, that is the only -- the green lands therefore are the only lands that Ontario Hydro -- or that Hydro One has made an application on March 29th to the OEB to seek a leave to construct.  There was no other land that was sought for leave to construct; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Mr. Thomson, you confirm that?

MR. THOMSON:  Absolutely.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Then would you agree that Hydro One has not made any application for leave to construct on any of the other lands, like the orange lands of the landowners, except for the green strip on those lands.

MR. SKALSKI:  That's correct.  We have only applied for access on our proposed widened corridor, which is shown in green on the map.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, right now, as we sit here today, would you agree, sir, with me that presently, Hydro One has a right to ask each landowner for permission to enter the green strip and perform the testing and surveys that Hydro One requires.  You have the right to do that?

MR. THOMSON:  On a voluntary basis?

MR. FALLIS:  Yes.  You have that right to ask.

MR. THOMSON:  We could ask, yes.  Which we have been doing.

MR. FALLIS:  Would you as an experienced property agent, which you have 30 years of experience?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Would you agree with me that every landowner is entitled in law to grant permission to anyone including Hydro One, to enter on the subject lands which have been identified as green, to carry out the testing that there is there.  They have the right to give you that permission?

MR. THOMSON:  I think if one approaches a person voluntarily and asks for it, it is their right.

MR. FALLIS:  Would you agree with me that any one landowner similarly could have the right, the right in law, as a property owner, to refuse Hydro One the right to enter on that strip.

MR. NETTLETON:  Well, Madam Chair, he is asking an opinion of law.  He's asking the witness a question of law and I object to the question.

None of these witnesses are lawyers.  This issue of whether or not the law allows for a landowner to refuse access to a third-party or whether section 98 overrides common law is a matter for argument, in my respectful submission.

MR. FALLIS:  Well, Madam Chair --

MS. NOWINA:  Go ahead, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  I hear the objection to the question.  I will rephrase it.

Mr. Thomson, if I ask for permission to come on your property, you have the right to say yes or you have the right to say no; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  If you were asking me, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Yes, okay.  And if anybody asks you for this right, be it Hydro One, you have that right.

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, Mr. Nettleton has already indicated that it is a matter of law I think we're dealing with here.

MR. FALLIS:  Well, I think the point has been made.

Now, you indicated, I think, appendix 7, which I referred to in the question -- I didn't realize that actually had crafted in here -- but the access agreement that is in appendix 7 to which I referred earlier, Mr. Nettleton, indicated was dealing with -- was only to be used for construction of access routes, that was the purpose of that document.  I think, Mr. Girard, you indicated that is what it was? Or Mr. Nettleton certainly did, but --

MR. SKALSKI:  Just to clarify, Mr. Fallis, the version of the early-access agreement that you have taken from the leave-to-construct application is the original version that was filed.  And a copy of that version was also filed in the early-access application.  But we subsequently updated on May the 3rd to try to clarify that that agreement only pertains, in this case, for a leave to construct or use an access route.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay, thank you.

Now, sir, with respect to -- excuse me for a second.

The leave application that has been sought is only on the 180-foot or 175- to 200-foot green strip; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Do you agree, Mr. Thomson?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Thank you.  Sir, with respect to the access, the access that you seek is only on the 175- to 200-foot strip; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Your need to get to that property is something that is thwarted by the fact that access can't be won through the green strip from the adjacent property and you have to approach the landowner?

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.

MR FALLIS:  You would agree with me that the order that the Board is about to give you, if you are successful, will not permit you to go on anything but the green strip?

MR. THOMSON:  If the Board orders that it is to stay on the strip, yes, we would be then going to each owner where we are off-corridor and negotiating those.

MR. FALLIS:  Are you of the opinion that when you get the order, that you will be able to go on other property other than the green strip?

MR. GIRARD:  The order we're requesting is to access what we call and was defined as the widened corridor, which is the green strip.  Any access off that access route we said would be subject to negotiation with the owner.

We anticipate that the one activity -- just to clarify, the one activity that may require -- in order to minimize damage to the properties, the one activity that may require this off-corridor access routes would be soil testing.

Just to clarify the amount of activity required here, we will be accessing about 450 properties along the entire route, from Bruce generating station to Milton switching station.  Of those properties, right now we anticipate that we will have to access about 40 to 50 or 60 properties only for soil testing.

Of those, about 14 are on property that is presently owned by Hydro One.  That's out of Bruce generating station.

So what we're talking about here is possibly about 35 to 30 properties that we may have to access.  We've looked at those and there may be about in the order of 20 that require this off-corridor access routes, which will be negotiated and not subject to this order.  They will be negotiating with the property owners.

If we cannot come to agreement for these routes that we require, we will not be able to access the properties for soil testing.

Things like legal survey, engineering survey, environmental studies, we will be able to walk continuously along the widened right of way -- the widened corridor.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, sir, would you agree with me that the -- as the green corridor strip is identified, it lies to the north or to the east of the existing corridor of 500 and 230 kV lines.  Would you agree with me that the equipment that you seek to move cannot be moved along those lines without the agreement of the owner of the land on which those lines are located?

MR. GIRARD:  What I stated was moving equipment -- and this would be the soil-testing equipment -- the order we're requesting is that it can be moved along the green strip without -- the permission we are requesting is that we can move it along the green strip.

MR. FALlIS:  My question didn't relate to the green strip.  It related to land to the south and to the east of the green strip where there is an existing 230 or 500 kV line, which you have a right to maintain.  Would you agree with me that that right to maintain does not permit you to move the equipment, the testing equipment, along that land without the consent of the owner of the land where the easement is located?

MR. GIRARD:  As stated earlier in our evidence, yes, we agree with you.

MR. FALLIS:  Just so I may understand it, the width is 180 to 200 feet.  The towers typically are how high?

MR. GIRARD:  In the order of roughly 160 to 180 feet, in that general area.

MR. FALLIS:  I see.  What width do they occupy of that 180 to 200 feet?  What width do they stretch out to?

MR. GIRARD:  If I could just take a moment.

[Witness panel confers]


MR. GIRARD:  Subject to verification, the width of the tower is about 60 feet.

MR. FALLIS:  I see.  Can you explain the reason why there is more distance required than the width of the towers?

Is there anything of an electrical discharge?  Is it if they fall over or if they topple, or where is the magic between 175 and 200 when the towers are basically the same height and the same width?

MR. GIRARD:  That is due to the design configuration, the design criteria.  We make sure that the conductor always stays within the widened corridor.

So when the wind -- and the wind does come up.  It blows the conductor out towards the edge of the right-of-way and that it is always electrically within the edge of the corridor.

MR. FALLIS:  Is the conductor the wire?

MR. GIRARD:  The wires, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  So the wires move out?

MR. GIRARD:  The wire does blow out, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  And what distance would it blow out?  I know they sag under load, but I didn't know that they had a lateral movement, as well.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Like a skipping rope, we're talking about, like the width of --

MR. GIRARD:  Depending on the -- that's one of the things -- as you say, like a skipping rope.  In our terminology, we call it galloping of the conductor.  If you get an instance of ice and wind in the right configuration, the conductor will act in that way.  And we have to make sure that it stays on that widened corridor to keep the public safe.

MR. FALLIS:  I see.  How far from the other corridor -- from the galloping wires do they have to be from the other tower, the 230 or 530, whichever you're opposite?

MR. GIRARD:  This is the details of the design --

MR. FALLIS:  One hundred feet?

MR. GIRARD:  -- that we haven't completed yet.  That is one of the studies we want to do during this early-access activity.  We want to go on the lands, and that is why we look at tower locations, so we can determine all of these factors.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, Mr. Thomson, the Ontario Energy Board has already made a ruling on July the 4th about whether or not leave-to-construct application would permit a discussion of alternate routes.  It has ruled that it would not entertain such discussion and it said that its only right is -- its only authority is to consider the application and also this application, and consideration to the interests of consumers as to price, reliability and quality of delivery of electrical service.

That isn't really what the landowners are concerned about when you go to the property to seek to build a line; is that right?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, Mr. Fallis' question has referred to parts of section 92 of the Act and, as you indicated at the outset of this proceeding, this application is distinct from that.

I am just wondering if my friend could help me make the link between the question and the application that is now before the Board.

MS. NOWINA:  I will support that, Mr. Nettleton.  

Mr. Fallis, when I gave rather lengthy preliminary remarks in this hearing, I read the issues list for the section 98 for today's hearing.  I read it into the record.  It is important that we stay on the issues of this hearing. 

So I am interested in how you would draw a line between your questioning and the issues in the section 98 proceeding.

MR. FALLIS:  Your indulgence, Madam Chair.

Well, Madam Chair, the -- with respect to the application for interim access, an interim order authorizing a person to enter the lands for those purposes.  First of all, it appears it applies to a person who has sought leave under section 92, that's very definite.  That is part of the access application which Hydro One has applied for leave.  That's clear on that point.

Secondly, the reasons for coming on the land must be to talk about the location, to enter on the land to attend on the location and any part of the proposed work, and that is part of what the 92 application is about and what the section -– the application is about in number 51, which is before us today, is the intended location of the work.  So I cannot see how the question can be irrelevant.

I think it is absolutely germane.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, can you draw the relevance to the issues in this case that have been defined by the Board?

MR. FALLIS:  Well, with respect, I suggest that the Board has indicated that it will not entertain -- this Board has indicated it will not entertain alternate route discussion during the leave application. 

It is, I suggest, an opportunity to this witness to indicate what problem that has presented to people having access, the landowners who want to talk about that.  I'm asking him as an experienced land agent, does the price, quality of service and reliability of service, is that of a concern to the individual landowners -- that was the question -- from his experience in the field when he goes out to see them to talk about access.  It's a conversation.

Does that topic raise itself?  That was the question.

MS. NOWINA:  I understand that was the question.  I am asking what the relevance of that is to the issues in the issue list for this proceeding.

MR. FALLIS:  Well, the relevance is, is that it's about access to the property.  I am asking him in a discussion:  Does that topic arise?

I think I would like to know -- he has been talking to clients or to landowners, intervenors who have had land and access is sought.  And I am asking if, in the discussion, does that topic come up?  I am surprised -- I am surprised by the question, because I don't know why it wouldn't be a proper question in view of the fact that it's a very germane part of this application, is to take the land and ask if that collateral issue was even raised by those owners.

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, if I may.  It strikes me that what Mr. Fallis is wanting to ask the Hydro One witnesses is about the purpose of the proposed work and the location of the proposed work.

Where I am fussed, where I believe we're crossing the line is when we start talking about specific issues that are relevant and germane to the section 92.

I don't have an objection if Mr. Fallis wishes to ask Mr. Thomson questions about whether landowners will be consulted or discussed about the purpose during the early-access process, the purpose of the proposed work and undertaking.  I think that is a fair question.

But I think where we're broaching the line is where we start talking about specifics of the section 92 approval, namely the qualities and characteristics that are expressly provided in that section.

If Mr. Fallis wishes to ask a question of my witnesses about the purpose of the line and whether the purpose is discussed, that is not going to raise an objection, from my perspective.

MS. NOWINA:  Can we narrow it to that, Mr. Fallis?

MR. FALLIS:  Well, I think I made my point.  It is only, the answer is almost obvious, that the discussion doesn't take place.  Anyway, that is for argument.

If the Board makes an interim order for access in favour of Hydro One, would you agree with me, Mr. Thomson, that Hydro One will receive the benefit of the gift of that order, and without ever having done any more than making the request of the OEB for that entitlement.

MR. THOMSON:  Well, I think it is very clear that it will help assist us with what we have described with the activities that we want to get out and do, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  So if the Board makes the order for access, it is subject to the owners making the decision to grant you that right if you had asked them; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  I'm sorry, Mr. Fallis, could you repeat the question, please?

MR. FALLIS:  Would you agree that if you received the order for interim access for the 450 properties in one fell swoop, that that is the same as having got the permission from all of those owners to do exactly the same thing?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, that's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Would you agree with me that the effect of the order that you may receive has the effect of taking from those owners of all of those 450 properties the rights which they had to make the decision to give you the right to come on the property?

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, I think that is what was contemplated in the legislation, section 98.  We are using a provision that was included in section 98 --

MR. FALLIS:  You certainly have the right to do it.

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, can I finish?

MR. FALLIS:  Certainly.

MR. SKALSKI:  We're operating under the assumption that the legislature of Ontario, when it passed section 98, knew what it was doing.



MR. FALLIS:  The right that the owners had has now been usurped and taken by the Board and given to you; is that correct?  Mr. Thomson.

MR. SKALSKI:  I think, Mr. Fallis --

MR. FALLIS:  I was asking Mr. Thomson the question, I think.

MR. SKALSKI:  If it is permitted, I will respond, if you are interested.

I think we are assuming that if the Board makes an order, makes the order that we have requested, then again the Board is acting in its proper role as overseer of the electricity system.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay, well that is -- with respect to the -- would you agree with me that the result of the order that would be made, the landowner no longer has the right to refuse Hydro One access to that green strip of land?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, Mr. Fallis' question again is broaching on a topic of legal debate and interpretation of what the Board can and cannot do and what rights and interests that the Board may or may not infringe upon affected parties.

I submit that that is a matter for debate and argument.  It is not something that is the subject matter of factual dispute or evidentiary dispute in this proceeding.

MS. NOWINA:  I would agree with you, Mr. Nettleton.  Mr. Fallis, it really is a matter for argument.

MR. FALLIS:  Mr. Thomson, if a landowner comes to you when you hold that order in hand and says:  Get off my property, it's mine, you will use the order as your authority to be there; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. FALLIS:  And would you agree with me, that in the process that you have elected to take, none of the landowners, to your knowledge, have consented to the taking of that -- of giving you that right; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  I'm sorry.

MR. FALLIS:  Do you have any knowledge that any of the landowners have consented to giving you the right to come on the green strip?

MR. THOMSON:  We have approached them and asked them if they would consent to it, yes.  There are some that have, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  I thought that that was not a question that was made of any landowner, and that was the answer that you gave to -- that was given by Hydro One to Mr. Ross, that there were no agreements made with any landowner for access.

MR. THOMSON:  With regard to formal agreements, we have gone in and talked to them about the activities we were doing on their property.

No, there was no --

MR. FALLIS:  You say there are agreements that you have entered into.

MR. THOMSON:  No, no, there were no agreements.  Discussions took place with each of the owners on these follow-up calls that I had mentioned that we had made, we discussed the activities that were to take place on the property as part of our introduction, and at that time the agents did ask if these, some of these activities could occur, and the owners agreed to it.

MR. FALLIS:  So then in your answer that you gave to Mr. Ross, is it relating only to written agreements?  Or is this to handshake agreements as well?

MR. THOMSON:  No, there were no written agreements.


MR. FALLIS:  But there are other agreements in place to permit –-


MR. THOMSON:  When we say agreements, they were permissions.  They were permissions that were asked of the owner, whether they consented to it, or not.  And they were not written, nor were they handshakes.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, Hydro One is, itself, not taken anything from any of the owners.  You only asked the OEB for permission and may get the permission upon your request; is that correct?

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  So, with respect, sir, would I be correct that Hydro One has not started any expropriation proceedings for any acquisition of any right, for any of the green land, strip of land, anywhere on the 180-kilometer corridor?

MR. THOMSON:  All we have sought are the two sections; that is, the section 92 and section 98.

MR. FALLIS:  So -- and the gentleman on the end referred to the fact that the authority to do that is found under section 98(1).1 of the Act to grant interim access, so that is a right the Board has under statute.  That's your understanding, sir?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, it is almost one o'clock.  Can you tell me when an appropriate time to break your cross will be and we will resume with your cross after the lunch break?

MR. FALLIS:  I am happy --

MS. NOWINA:  Would now be a good time?

MR. FALLIS:  Sure.

MS. NOWINA:  Before we do that, I would just like to talk about this afternoon's schedule.  So we will return and we will complete Mr. Fallis' cross.  Then we have Mr. Waern, Mr. Nettleton's redirect and questions by the Panel.

Mr. Nettleton, will you be prepared to do examination -- or, rather, argument-in-chief this afternoon?

MR. NETTLETON:  Absolutely.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Are other parties prepared to do argument this afternoon, if time would permit?  Mr. Ross, I see you shaking your head.

MR. ROSS:  It would be a "no" if that is not going to hold up the entire matter to another day.  However, if pressed, I think that that I could scramble and get something together.

MS. NOWINA:  Your preference would be to hold it until tomorrow.

MR. FALLIS:  My preference would be the same.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  We will take that into consideration.  We will talk more about the schedule this afternoon.

We will break now until two o'clock. 

--- Luncheon recess taken at 1:00 p.m.

--- Upon resuming at 2:00 p.m. 

MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  Did any matters come up during the break?

PROCEDURAL MATTERS:

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, I might be able to report on the status of the two undertakings that were given this morning.

I have been able to confirm with Hydro One employees who are more knowledgeable on this topic of insurance the following, if it is of assistance.

Hydro One is subject to the Workplace Safety and Insurance Board, the WSIB, and Hydro One also has an insurance policy and it also, as a matter of practice, ensures that the procurement of contracts for contractors is one that includes insurance requirements.

The level of the policies are a matter of commercial sensitivity.  The limits of those policies are a matter of commercial sensitivity.  They vary based on different types of work that is carried out.  There is not a standard, as I understand it, with respect to the levels of the limits of the policies.

Finally, Ontario's Workplace Safety and Insurance Act mandates the liability and required payments for all entities who are subject to the Act, such as Hydro One.

So those are the attempts that have been made to address the questions that have comprised the two undertakings and I'm wondering if anything more arises in that respect.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. McMeeken isn't here, so perhaps we will, at break or something, you can catch him to see whether or not that meets his undertaking requirements.

MR. NETTLETON:  Sure, I can.  Okay.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, are you ready to resume?

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FALLIS, CONTINUED:

MR. FALLIS:  I am, Madam Chair.

The point, we talked about agreements with respect to access arrangement.

The question that was posed to you by Mr. Ross read this way:  Has Hydro, in relation to this early-access application, entered into any access agreements with any landowners that include terms and conditions that differ from the discussed terms you filed this morning?

I heard the answer to that this morning, was "No", I think it was given by Mr. Skalski.  Then in my examination of Mr. Thomson, he indicated that there were agreements that weren't written, but there were permissions.

With that in mind, I would ask that the -- if you would undertake on behalf of Hydro One to, in the interests of transparency so that there are no issues on the table that are not transparent, that you would provide copies of any and all permissions or agreements, written or oral, current or condition precedent, condition precedent granting of access with any landowner or any landowners' groups.

Would you undertake to produce such agreements or permissions and advice of them?

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, before we answer you on that question, just to clarify.  It's our intention that the proposed conditions, which were filed under the update to Board Staff No. number 5, will apply to all landowners.

So to the extent that there have been, as Mr. Thomson indicated, permissions given by landowners for early-access activities, as a result of property agent discussions that have been held with them, it is our view that those conditions would apply to those permissions as well.

So our view is that the conditions will apply across the Board to all landowners.  And then, in addition, as Mr. Thomson has indicated, we have at the same time as we've been sending property owners out -- to visit landowners, we have been asking if they would permit early-access activities to take place.

MR. FALLIS:  With respect, sir, would you -- are you saying that there aren't any permissions or agreements that are in place with respect to access at this point in time?

MR. SKALSKI:  There are permissions.  We have asked landowners if it's all right if we carry out early-access activities, and some have said yes.

MR. FALLIS:  At the risk of sounding like it is a legal question, but in my understanding permissions would have the connotation of agreement to come on the property. If you got permission you have the agreement of the owner to come on.  Is that correct?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, I think we're getting into a discussion of understanding what a permission is and whether a permission constitutes an agreement, and if it is an agreement, then is it an agreement that is inconsistent with the terms and conditions that Hydro One has sought to have you, this Board, impose upon it.

The evidence has been that Hydro One has consulted with landowners and requested voluntarily, permission to come onto their lands and carry out early-access activities.

I think what the witnesses have said is that that is viewed in a different light than what has been happening to date as it relates to this proceeding, where there are terms and conditions which have been tendered and intended to be applicable to all landowners.

So I think that the idea that the permissions are a separate agreement is where Hydro One is not seeing eye to eye with Mr. Fallis.  It is seen as something different.  It is seen as just simply a voluntary permission to come onto the lands.  So there is no inconsistency with the answers that the witnesses have provided.

MR. FALLIS:  May I ask this as a follow-up question.  I accept that answer.

Is there any draft, presently any draft overarching agreement now in place or about to be in place, with any landowner or landowners' group with respect to access, early access to the property of any landowner in the 180 kilometre line, corridor?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, there is not.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay, thank you.  Now, I want to change my line of questioning, sir, and may go to Mr. Skalski on this, and I will -- I want to change my line of questioning to focus on the access urgency that you have identified.

Perhaps, if I could, I would like you to confirm some of the following facts with me and ask whether or not you would agree.

I think you have told us already that there is a very tight timetable for Hydro One to accomplish the construction of the 500 kV electrical line and you have indicated it has to be constructed by the end of December of 2011.  Is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's the in-service date we are targeting, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Yes, okay.  And from the prefiled evidence that has been filed with the -- in the material, the big binder that we have referred to, it would appear that the Minister of Energy, in October of 2005, directed the Ontario Power Authority to execute an agreement which had been negotiated with Bruce Power and Bruce A LP, where the Bruce Consortium, the two of them, agreed to refurbish and restart units 1 and 2 at Bruce A, both of which had been previously decommissioned; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, you're referring to the directives that were included in our leave-to-construct application, the governmental directives which the OPA...

MR. FALLIS:  There was material in there.  I'm just saying:  Would you agree that the Minister of Energy directed the OPA to execute that agreement?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, I believe that's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  And that the agreement was to provide for units 1 and units 2 at Bruce A to be refurbished and that those units previously had been decommissioned.  Is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  I believe that's correct.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Now, in that material, I understand that -- and I don't know, I would like to show it to you.

Are you familiar with the report of the auditor general of Ontario on the Bruce Power refurbishment agreement?  Are you familiar with that?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, I'm not, Mr. Fallis.


MR. FALLIS:  Well, the auditor general was asked to review that agreement, and the agreement is very -- it's a very good and succinct report, so I am going to be putting some information I've got from the report, which was released in April of 2007 after this document is -- had been produced.


You started the process before it, I realize, but I am going to -- I would like to perhaps, if I might, just file it, because I am going to be asking questions on it.  May I file it with the Board?


MS. NOWINA:  Well, it's a public document, Mr. Fallis, so I suppose there is no issue with it being filed with the Board.


However the witnesses -- do I understand that the witnesses did not know that you were going to be asking questions on this document?


MR. FALLIS:  Well, I'm just saying the information that I've garnished is from the document, but it relates to the urgency of the access application, and I just secured the information easily and readily from that, because it is in the prefiled evidence.


MS. NOWINA:  Are you talking about the prefiled evidence of the section 92, the leave-to-construct application, Mr. Fallis?


MR. FALLIS:  Yes.


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Mr. Fallis, if you had been here for my opening remarks, you would have known that I was very explicit that this is an application for section 98 and that our questioning and the evidence that we're referring to is for the section 98.


MR. FALLIS:  Absolutely.


MS. NOWINA:  Now we have strayed a little from that and I will allow it, but I would like you to keep to the issues of the section 98.  In fairness to the witnesses, they came prepared to speak to their application in the section 98 and their evidence therein.


MR. FALLIS:  Fair enough.  The reason I raise it, Madam Chair, is that the whole reason that we seem to be here is because of urgency.  I want to understand and your Board to understand the reason for the urgency, because the urgency seems to be being cast on the backs of 450 landowners, when the -- they aren't the cause of the urgency.  That's what I'm saying.


So I want to be able to put some facts and ask them to confirm them so that your Board will have that understanding.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, which of the three issues that we are hearing in that section 98 does that urgency question refer to?  I'm not saying it doesn't, but I would like you to tell me which issue it does refer to.


MR. FALLIS:  It is issue number 2.


MS. NOWINA:  Which is?


MR. FALLIS:  The early-access activities proposed by Ontario Hydro, appropriate -- and the thing is that I am wanting to -- because it is so urgent, I want to know why the -- I want you to understand why it is urgent and why the Board -- why Hydro One says it is urgent, because it seems to be urgent to an extent that the property rights of owners are being affected by the urgency request that is made by Hydro One to have this thing completed by December of 2011.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, I believe that we dealt with the urgency issue in the Motions Day.


The issue number 2, the question in issue number 2, is:  Are the early-access activities proposed by Hydro One appropriate?  That is, are the activities that they have applied to be able to do under this section of the Act appropriate?


MR. FALLIS:  Yes, but in the context of what time frame must they be completed in.  I'm not saying -- and that is a factor, because it takes time to do these things and why the time -- why the time has to be abbreviated to the extent that it is.  I'm not saying they don't need the information.  I'm saying why do they need the information in the abbreviated period of time that they have -- that they require it in.


I want to bring out the reason.  It shouldn't be the reason of the -- it shouldn't be on the back of the landowners.  If the reason is because of something they haven't done, I want your Board to know it.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton, Mr. Millar, do you have any comments on this?


MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, the idea that the early-access activities are intended to be carried out in an abridged manner is inconsistent with the evidence that is on the record.  That evidence, in particular, is the revision to the Board's information request or Interrogatory No. 5.


Condition 12 indicates that the proposed timing for early-access activities is intended to be outstanding until April 1, 2009.


The evidence this morning was already provided by the witnesses that the reason for that time period was to allow for information to be captured in respect of two spring growing seasons.


So I am not sure where Mr. Fallis is going with this line of questioning in respect of the refurbishment agreement audit report.  I am not clear at all as to how that discussion relates to, in any way, the matter that is before the Board today; namely, the conditions and the three issues that are set out in the issues list.


So I am very -- if Mr. Fallis wishes to proceed, that's fine.  I will wait to hear his questions, but I am somewhat suspect that we're broaching areas that are not relevant to this proceeding.


MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Millar, do you have any comments?


MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, I don't have much to add, just two very quick points.


In terms of questions regarding the timing of the application and the work, those may not fit easily into the issues list.  I don't necessarily have a problem with those.  I think those have largely been asked and answered for the most part.  I doubt we will hear much that we haven't already heard in terms of why the application has come when it did.


In terms of the document, however, I haven't seen it and I don't know exactly what questions Mr. Fallis proposes to ask.  So it is difficult to know, without hearing the questions and seeing the document, to what extent it is in or out of scope.


I guess I share, perhaps, some concerns of Mr. Nettleton, but without seeing the document or the questions, I'm not sure I can comment further.


MS. NOWINA:  Okay.  I would like to confer with my Panel for a moment.  If the sound people can turn off our mikes, I would appreciate that.


[Board Panel confers]


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Mr. Fallis, we will continue with your questioning.  I would just urge you to try to keep it to the issues within the case.


MR. FALLIS:  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  We will mark the document as an exhibit.


MR. MILLAR:  K1.2, Madam Chair.


EXHIBIT NO. K1.2:  DOCUMENT ENTITLED "THE BRUCE POWER


REFURBISHMENT AGREEMENT", BY THE OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR


GENERAL OF ONTARIO; RELEASED APRIL 2007.


MS. NOWINA:  I do remind the witness panel that you haven't had an opportunity to review this material, so you can answer in whatever way is appropriate, given that.


MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, the document is entitled "The Bruce Power Refurbishment Agreement"; Office of the Auditor General of Ontario, that is the author.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  May we have the -- may the Panel have copies?


MR. FALLIS:  Sorry.


[Mr. Fallis distributes exhibit to Board Panel]


MR. FALLIS:  Now, Mr. Skalski, I understand from the report -- and these are subject to verification -- that, I will just ask you if you can confirm this fact, that the refurbishment costs of unit 1 and unit 2 at Bruce A are estimated to cost in the vicinity of two and a half million dollars, and that is -- that would be borne by Bruce Power itself in the construction of that refurbishment.  Would you have an understanding about that?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, I'm afraid I don't, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  Mr. Girard, do you?

MR. GIRARD:  No, I have no understanding of that.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  So with respect, I will just leave that as it is, that my understanding is that from the report that has been filed, and which is by the Office of the Auditor General on that agreement, that in April 2007 that it was asked to look over the agreement to make comments on it and it made certain findings of fact along the way.

One of the facts is found on page 12, was that the proposed transmission line, 500 kV line was needed to transmit the electrical power to be generated from units 1 and 2 at Bruce A nuclear when they come on stream in 2011.

MR. NETTLETON:  Sorry, Madam Chair, the document that I have been provided does not have a page 12.

MS. NOWINA:  I think it is hidden by the staple, if it's the same as my document, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. FALLIS:  It looks like that.

MR. NETTLETON:  No.

MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Mine does.

MR. NETTLETON:  Oh, I found it.  It is after page 16.  Got it.

MR. FALLIS:  That was the purpose of the line, was to generate -- is to transmit the power generated by units 1 and 2 of Bruce A when they come on stream in 2011.  Do you disagree with that?

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, Mr. Fallis, could you repeat your question, please.  Also give us a reference on page 12, please.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  That's a good question.

Regardless of the page number, just a general statement, the 500 kV line is needed to transmit the power generated from units 1 and 2 of Bruce A when they, when it comes on stream, after December of 2011.  That's what the powerline is all about.

MR. SKALSKI:  Well, actually, there are two elements there.  First off, the line is needed for other things than Bruce nuclear.  There is also the additional wind power that is coming on stream.

Secondly, in terms of timing, the Bruce units are actually, as I am aware, coming back into service starting in 2009, and then other units are going out of service.

But that's actually the reason that the OPA has identified in other documentation, that is included in our leave-to-construct application, that their preference would actually be an earlier in-service date for the line.  In fact, 2009 is their preferred in-service date, but they can live with 2011, if there are near term and interim measures taken to address the gap --

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.

MR. SKALSKI:  -- in capacity.

MR. FALLIS:  Now, you indicated you worked closely with OPA in putting the package together.  You indicated that earlier this morning.

You indicated in a question by my friend, Mr. Ross, that you weren't aware of the price-security agreement or the 6.3 cents per kilowatt-hour or $63 per megawatt hour which was negotiated as a price security level by OPA and the Bruce Power Authority, Bruce Power.  You were not aware of that?

MR. SKALSKI:  We're not a party to that agreement, no.

MR. FALLIS:  You're not a party to the agreement, okay.

Well, the report on page 6 and 7, it indicates that that is the price-security level that Bruce Power achieved in order to commit itself to spend all of the money on the building the -- refurbishing the two units.

Are you aware of that?  That they were -- not as to the rate, but are you aware ever the fact there was a price-security agreement negotiated by the Province of Ontario which OPA was instructed to sign, to put in place a guarantee for Bruce Power, that it could have a floor below which it couldn't fall for price security, as consideration for putting out its own money to build the units, to refurbish the units.

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, Hydro One is just the transmitter.  We transmit the electricity, and we connect generation under our licence, under our transmission licence.  So we are not aware of the details of the generation agreements that are signed between other parties.

We connect and we transmit.

MR. FALLIS:  Hmm-hmm.  So -- and yet you work with them to put the agreement together.  You work with them to design the location and yet you don't know -- you're saying Hydro One does not know about that; is that your answer, that Hydro One does not know about that?

MR. NETTLETON:  Mr. Fallis, you have made reference to an agreement.

MS. ROSS:  I think my friend should direct his comments to the Board, if I may.

MS. NOWINA:  True, Ms. Ross.

MR. NETTLETON:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair.  My friend has directed a question to the panel and implicit in that question relates to an agreement; and the witness has answered to say they are not party to any -- to the agreement that he is speaking of.  So it is an improper question.

Furthermore, I am not sure where we are going with this line of questioning at all and how it relates to the early-access activities.

This is precisely the concern that I was -- I had raised or thought we would be going down by this document and I am not sure how it, in any way, relates to the early-access application that is before you.  I object to the question.

MS. NOWINA:  I certainly agree with you, the second part of your comment, Mr. Nettleton.

The first part I am not sure if we had a different issues list and we were in a different proceeding, for example, the section 92 with a different panel.  But for the second part of your question, I agree.

I do not see how this is relevant, Mr. Fallis, to a section 98 access-to-land proceeding.

MR. FALLIS:  Well, may I explain as clearly as I can as to --

MS. NOWINA:  Please do.

MR. FALLIS:  -- why it is.  This application for leave to construct has been brought with almost obscene haste to get this thing on board so they can get on the land now.  They want to be on this spring because they were afraid of the deadline that was of December of 2011.

Nobody has told us what the deadline consequences are.  You, as a Board, must know those consequences to know, to understand and appreciate why there is such an onus on Hydro One to get this line in place by that date.

I don't think there is anything before this Board that has allowed you, in evidence, to understand that and I think your Board must know that information prior -- as part of the information package that you must have on hand to understand why the haste.  What are the consequences if you don't make it?  That is where the question is going.

It is absolutely critical that the access rights that are being taken from landowners -- may be taken by landowners by your Board and given to Hydro are done so in the framework of the knowledge of why the haste.  That's all the questions are about.

To say that it doesn't relate to it; it is germane to the very issue of why we're here, is because people are being asked to give up land, according to Hydro One, without compensation, and taking -- to come on your land for a day or a week to drill or build a road is a taking.  They're being asked to do this without compensation, as early as this spring and they're upset that they are not there now.  They want to be there now doing it because they have to start.

The thing is this:  Why the haste?  This is what the line of questioning is.  And to ignore that questioning is to ignore the very fundamental reason why we're here, is to give up landowners' rights to Ontario Hydro at no cost, proposed by them.  Why the haste?  That's what this question is about.  I don't see how it -- it couldn't be more germane than that.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Nettleton.   Do you have a response to that?

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  If my friend has a question concerning the timing of the early-access activities, I don't understand why it's necessary for my friend to be referring to a special review of the Minister of Energy's -- Office of the Auditor General of Ontario's report, and for him to effectively provide evidence through his questioning about the content of that report.

If he seeks to ask a question about the timing of the early-access activities and why Hydro One is proposing to carry out those activities in the time period that it has set out in its application, those are fair questions.  But that is not the line of questioning that Mr. Fallis was going down.

I object to the questions that Mr. Fallis has been asking.  They're not relevant to this proceeding.  They aren't and have not been about the timing of the early-access activities.

I would suggest that if Mr. Fallis wants to enquire about those -- that timing and those aspects, he is free to do so, provided they are proper questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, can you rephrase your questions so they're direct questions to the panel about the requirement for the timing of this application?

MR. FALLIS:  Did you say would I rephrase the question?

MS. NOWINA:  Would you rephrase the question, please?

MR. FALLIS:  You have indicated, sir, that December 2011 is a critical date.  What is the consequence of not delivering -- to Hydro One of not delivering the ability to transmit electrical energy on that date?  Is there a financial consequence to Hydro One if you don't make that date?

MR. SKALSKI:  If I could draw your attention, Mr. Fallis, to Exhibit A1.1.


MR. FALLIS:  Of what?

MR. SKALSKI:  That's our early-access application, Mr. Fallis.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Skalski, are you referring to what I have as blue pages, which is the update from July 26th, and is Exhibit A, tab 1, schedule 1?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, Ms. Chaplin.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.

MR. SKALSKI:  But you can use the original version, as well, because I am going to refer to a paragraph that has not been updated.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.

MR. SKALSKI:  So, Mr. Fallis, if you turn to paragraph 10, which is on the updated version on page 5, and, if I may, I will just read that paragraph into the record:
"In a letter to Hydro One dated December 22nd, 2006 and filed as Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 5, appendix 2 in EB-2007-0050, the OPA noted that subject to a technical-viability study, the use of series compensation as a stopgap measure may be considered if approvals for the new line are unduly delayed.  The cost of series compensation is currently estimated at approximately $100 million..."

And the reference given there is the OPA's transmission discussion paper number 5, page 51, which was filed as Exhibit B, tab 6, schedule 5, appendix 5 in EB-2007-0050.

"Waiting to commence the early-access activities until the Board grants leave to construct could, accordingly, have a significant financial consequence for electricity ratepayers in the province, if delays to the approvals process were to lead to a decision by the OPA to request or to accelerate the request for installation of series compensation."

So --

MR. FALLIS:  Other than being a totally non-responsive answer to my question, I don't know what was the purpose to your answer.

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, Mr. Fallis, you were asking what the financial consequences of --

MR. FALLIS:  I'm talking --

MR. SKALSKI:  -- not meeting the in-service date.  This is one consequence.

If our early-access activities are delayed so that we cannot meet the in-service date, then the OPA has indicated that they may well make a decision to ask Hydro One to install series compensation at a cost of $100 million or more.  That is a financial consequence.

MR. FALLIS:  The compensation that you are referring to there is compensation to OPA.

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, series compensation is a technical term for a piece of equipment.  Mr. Girard can elaborate.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  What it is is we would have to build -- somewhere on the existing system, we would have to build stations, which are series-compensation stations.  They're like -- they are capacitors and they're called series compensation.  We would have to build those in order to increase the power flow on the lines that exist right now.

So that's what we would have to do.  That's why we're trying to get it done by December 2011, which will mean that we do not have to build these series-compensation stations at a cost of $100 million plus.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  What does that do to the -- are you concerned at all with the cost to the consumers, as far as price is concerned, if that is not delivered?

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, Mr. Fallis, I'm not sure what your question is.

MR. FALLIS:  If the transmission capacity is not there in December of 2011, what does that do to the price of the -- to the consumers of Ontario, as far as price of electricity to the consumers?

MR. SKALSKI:  Well, as we're saying, based on the information in paragraph 10, one consequence would be a $100 million increase in the amount of capital in the transmission system that would not otherwise have to be there.  That would have a rate consequence.

MR. FALLIS:  What is the consequence to OPA, the Ontario Power Authority, of not meeting that timeline?

MR. SKALSKI:  Consequence, in what respect, Mr. Fallis?

MR. FALLIS:  The financial consequence to the Ontario Power Authority if you don't meet that.

MR. SKALSKI:  The OPA -- I'm not...

MR. FALLIS:  The Ontario Power Authority is the purchaser of power from Bruce Power; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  I'm not aware of those consequences on Bruce Power -- on OPA or on Bruce Power.  Sorry.  As I say, we're not a party to that contract, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  All right.

Now, you have indicated that Ontario Hydro is the transmitter of power.  You also have a dual capacity, because you're a distributor of power, as well; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Hydro One is, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Hydro One.  Well, you are Hydro One.

MR. SKALSKI:  We're not Ontario Hydro.

MR. FALLIS:  Excuse me.  Hydro One is a distributor of power.

So as a distributor of power, as well as a transmitter of power, you wear two hats?

MR. SKALSKI:  Hydro One Networks, yes, has both a distribution licence and transmission licence.

MR. FALLIS:  Yes, okay.  So in the distribution licence side of it, it would cost -- if you have to pay -- if it costs more, you would anticipate you would have to pay more for the power if it costs more to produce; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Well, again, Hydro One distribution's rates are based on its cost of service, which does not include the cost of power.  That's a separate -- that's a separate item.

MR. FALLIS:  That's on distribution, but on the distribution of power to the consumer, it does charge the consumer and it has to pay for that power; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, to the extent that commodity prices increase, Hydro One as a distributor would pass on those increased costs of energy, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Hmm-hmm, okay.  So it would affect the consumer and if you had -- if you had to charge more because you had to recover $100 million, the consumer would have to pay it; correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes, but just so -- now you are referring to the $100 million for series --

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, again, I am failing to see the logic or the relevance of this line of questioning.

We're into matters relating to the price impacts to consumers.  That is clearly a matter that falls within the confines and purview of section 92 and your decision in respect of that application.  That is not the application that is before you.

The matter that is before you is the early-access application, and the line of questioning is not relevant to this proceeding.  I object to it.

MS. NOWINA:  I agree with that, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  Madam Chair, I...

You have indicated yourself that you are not in agreement with the line of questioning.  I would ask the Board to indicate to counsel here as to whether it is prepared to entertain any additional evidence with respect to the Ontario Power Authority, who does have very significant financial consequence to it, as a consequence of not having the power delivered to -- being able to be transmitted by December of 2011, because it is an extreme financial concern to everyone in the province who may ultimately be a consumer, as to what the financial implications are of not meeting that deadline.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Fallis, beyond the question of whether or not it was relevant to this proceeding, you have been given ample opportunity to submit evidence yourself in this proceeding and provide a panel that could be cross-examined on that evidence, if you wanted to supply evidence.

This panel has not been brought forward to be cross-examined on that evidence.

MR. FALLIS:  Mr. Thomson, with respect to your experience with access to lands and for taking some expropriation, do you ever recall a situation where Hydro One or Ontario Hydro has ever taken an interest in land for which it did not compensate an owner?

MR. THOMSON:  When you're referring to us acquiring land, there may be occasions where, if, let's say, in a relocation where we were involved in a relocation and it was for the owner's benefit and he was requesting it, we wouldn't pay compensation in a case like that.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  This is a strip that is 175 feet to 200 feet in width, 180 kilometres in length, which is owned by -- not owned by Ontario Hydro.

You have indicated, today, that you do not propose to pay any landowner, of which we now understand there are 450 parcel owners, any compensation whatsoever for your winning, if you are granted it by this Board, of the right to come on the property to do testing and drilling and any environmental-assessment work, surveys all of those things and you're not prepared to pay any landowner any money for that right.  Is that what you've told us today?

MR. THOMSON:  That's correct.  We have never actually ever had an early-access type application of this nature where we were going to a Board and seeking to get early access.

MR. FALLIS:  So this is a new -- you're departing from a previous experience where you would presume in the past that you would have paid or compensated the owner for acquiring that right, limited as it is to time and purpose?


MR. THOMSON:  They were different processes at the time for the other lines that we built, Mr. Fallis.  They were entirely different than what we're talking about today.

MR. FALLIS:  Building a 500 kV in 1970 and building a 500 kV line today, I would suggest, isn't too much different, sir.  They're just a process may be different but the building of --

MR. THOMSON:  No.  You're absolutely right.  The process is different than it was in the 1970s.

MR. FALLIS:  But the construction and the testing and so forth wouldn't vary too much in 30 years?


MR. THOMSON:  The type of testing that we're doing, no, it hasn't.


MR. FALLIS:  No, okay.  And the rights to go on and look at the property and do those things haven't changed either.


MR. THOMSON:  Again, it is the process that we're under that is different.


MR. FALLIS:  Hmm-hmm, okay.


You're the beneficiary of rights, may be the beneficiary of these rights that Hydro One may be granted by this Board, to go on the property and do all of these things without paying any money to anybody for the acquisition of those rights.

MR. THOMSON:  Again, I say it is a different process than we ever had before, so --


MR. FALLIS:  It's a freebee.

MR. THOMSON:  Pardon?


MR. FALLIS:  It's a freebee.  You don't pay anybody.

MR. THOMSON:  No.  It's a process that we've gone in and getting early permission to go in and do certain activities, and under the legislation, that's what we're here to obtain.


MR. FALLIS:  And you're asking that from the Board as opposed to asking it from the landowners; correct?

MR. THOMSON:  We're seeking it under the existing legislation, yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Now, with respect, sir, the -- I'm wondering if you or maybe Mr. Skalski could confirm this, that the Minister of Energy authorized the agreement to be taken with -- the Bruce refurbishment agreement on October 17th, 2005.

Are you familiar with the date that that refurbishment agreement took place, was signed?

MR. SKALSKI:  Is that the date that is in the evidence that was filed in Hydro One's leave-to-construct application?

MR. FALLIS:  I believe it is, yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  Then subject to check, yes, I agree with that.

MR. FALLIS:  So the check was the October 17th, 2005.  Your application was filed on March 29th, 2007.  Is that correct?  Application for leave, and application for access.

MR. SKALSKI:  Close enough, yes.  There was one day's gap between the two applications we filed, but that's close enough.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.

By my calculation, that distance in time was 12 months -- was one year, five months, 12 days.  If you find it is different you can tell me, but I will tell you that is exactly what it is.

MR. SKALSKI:  I take your figure.

MR. FALLIS:  So it is almost one-and-a-half years between the time that the agreement was signed and you made your application.

MR. SKALSKI:  Are you asking me to respond to that, Mr. Fallis?

MR. FALLIS:  I'm asking you, would you agree that that period of time is almost one-and-a-half years?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.  Under that agreement from the evidence that has been prefiled, you have known about the fact that you had to get power out of the Bruce?  Because that is where what the two units were for.

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, again, we're broaching areas that have no relevance to the issues that are before this Board in this proceeding.

I object to this line of questioning.  It doesn't seem to be relevant at all to those issues and application that is before you, namely early access.



MS. NOWINA:  I'm rather curious to see what the next question will be, Mr. Nettleton.  So let's let it go a couple of questions and see where it takes us.

MR. FALLIS:  So if this urgency is fostered in March of 2007, when you have known about the fact that you've had this agreement since April of -- October 17th of 2005, why didn't you bring your application for leave and application for access in the 2005 rather than 2007?

MR. SKALSKI:  Mr. Fallis, again, we did not have an agreement on October 17th, 2005, if that was your date.

Hydro One is not a party to the agreement that you are referring to.  That was an agreement made between other parties.

MR. SKALSKI:  Your question, Mr. Fallis, was whether Hydro One -- or given that Hydro One is aware of an agreement on October 17th, 2005, why did we wait?  We weren't aware of an agreement on October 17th, 2005 because we're not a party to the agreement.

MR. FALLIS:  So other parties are responsible for the delay?

MR. FALLIS:  Well, you're not a party to the agreement but you have been working with OPA as a consequence of the agreement.  I'm assuming other parties obviously delayed in instructing you then; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  What we know, as a transmitter, is that the OPA came forward with their final recommendation on March 22nd -- March 23rd, 2007.

MR. FALLIS:  Six days later, this huge document appears.

MR. SKALSKI:  We have already addressed that issue.

MR. FALLIS:  Yes.  A miracle.

Now, your cost if you can't get there on December 11th -- or December of 2011 is $100,000 for series compensation, that's what you see the damage is to Hydro One; is that correct?

MR. SKALSKI:  It's estimated at $100 million.

MR. FALLIS:  $100 million.

There may be other financial consequences to other parties beyond that, the Ontario Power Authority, but you don't know what they are?


MR. SKALSKI:  That's correct.  

MR. FALLIS:  Okay.   You indicated that Hydro One was not a party to the agreement.  When did Hydro One become aware of that agreement with the Minister -- between the OPA and the Bruce Power, Bruce A?

MR. SKALSKI:  I don't know that, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  Would that be an undertaking that you could provide, as to when Hydro One became aware of that agreement?

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, before my witnesses respond to that, I would object to the undertaking on the basis that it is not relevant to the early-access application that is before you.

[Board Panel confers]

MS. NOWINA:  The answer to that question would not be of any assistance to the Board, Mr. Fallis.

MR. FALLIS:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

Those are my questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Mr. Waern, can you make your way forward to a microphone?

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. WAERN:

MR. WAERN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  I am one of the owners of Toad Hall Farms, which is at the Colbeck junction, just at the place where this new line is supposed to turn.  So I have a couple of questions about the turning point of this line.

MS. NOWINA:  That's fine, Mr. Waern.

MR. WAERN:  I have yet to see -- I have a picture taken from the air of our property with the new lines on it, and I haven't seen a picture of the property immediately north of me where the turn will go.

I went up there yesterday and, just by eye, had an eye about where the two lines would intersect.  To my eye the turning tower would be right in the middle of the river, where the river is now.  The path of the river does turn.

Do you have a picture of that area and an indication of where the line would go in relationship to the river?

MR. GIRARD:  We have done some preliminary work.  The angle or the turning tower would not be in the river, but that is one of the -- that is one of the activities we want to undertake during the engineering studies, during this early-access procedure, so that we can determine the location of the turning tower and any impacts it would have on the land.

MR. WAERN:  So at this point you don't have a picture of where your line goes in relationship to the river?

MR. GIRARD:  I'm sorry.  I will make it clear.  We do have an aerial photograph.  We do have a mosaic of that area, which we had at the public information centres.  It is not in the river.


But the actual location of the tower, that's why we want to get onto the lands, to do some engineering work to determine the actual location of the tower in respect to the property and the river.

MR. WAERN:  So at the information centre, and with the people who came to our place to talk about this line, we raised the question both times:  Why is it necessary to cross -- in case you don't know, the 500 kV line crosses over a 230 kV line at that point, right in our backyard.

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. WAERN:  We raised the question:  Why is it necessary to cross at this point?  Apart from the fact that it's, I think, dangerous, at least in my feeling it is dangerous, it also moves the line 200 feet closer to the Grand River.

The answers we got as to why the line couldn't go underground is basically that it was too expensive, that the prime driving force about the location of this line is its cost.

So my question is:  How much would it cost to put a section of the line under the 230 and the 500 kV line so that it didn't go the extra 200 feet closer to the river and so it didn't hang over the 230 kV line?  What would be the cost involved with that, since the cost is the driving issue?

MR. GIRARD:  The questions you ask are very good questions, and that is why we want to get onto the land during this early access to do engineering studies and survey work so that we can determine options where we have to cross existing lines.

There are other places in the province where we have 500 kV lines crossing 230 kV lines overhead.  So I can assure you that, in Hydro One's opinion, it is a very safe practice, and -- but these are all activities we want to do during early access, to determine the actual locations and how close it is to the river the various towers would be.

MS. NOWINA:  Maybe I could interrupt for a moment.  Can the witness panel or Mr. Nettleton let Mr. Waern know where his questions might be answered or where those decisions would be made, where he would have an opportunity to make his submissions again on that?

MR. GIRARD:  Those are all questions that we will address during the section 92 leave-to-construct hearing.

MR. SKALSKI:  Just to clarify, the questions around costs, Mr. Waern, those will be dealt with in our leave-to-construct hearing.

MR. WAERN:  Sorry, I didn't hear you.

MR. SKALSKI:  The questions concerning the cost --

MR. WAERN:  Yes.

MR. SKALSKI:  -- of transmission towers and turning towers and routing, those will be addressed in the leave to construct hearing that is scheduled for January.

MR. WAERN:  Will the question of comparative costs, of going underground when you cross those lines, also be dealt with?  Will we be given figures that say, If we go underground here, it costs half a million dollars?  If we go on the 230 line, it will cost this many dollars?

MR. SKALSKI:  You will have the opportunity to ask interrogatories on those issues, if you wish, Mr. Waern.

MR. WAERN:  So I am getting it here that if I ask, I could get that information, but there is no way I can affect the decision; is that right?  That even if the costs are comparable, the line is fixed?  Is that the point?

MR. SKALSKI:  No, that is not at all what I'm saying, Mr. Waern.

MR. WAERN:  No?

MR. SKALSKI:  What I'm saying is that these questions are issues to be addressed in a subsequent step in the process, which is the leave-to-construct proceeding, and Hydro One has filed evidence with some information on comparative costs, and there may very well be interrogatory questions that get asked.

You will have the opportunity, Mr. Waern to, yourself, ask interrogatory questions on these issues, if they're of interest to you.

So I think we're just trying to indicate that the early-access proceeding here today isn't really the forum for your questions, but you will get an opportunity to ask them later.

MR. NETTLETON:  Mr. Waern, I might add that I believe there is also a technical workshop that is scheduled, as well, as part of the section 92 process and these I would expect to be the types of issues that would be discussed informally with Hydro One and interested parties such as yourself.

So that, too, would be an opportunity to raise these types of issues.

MR. WAERN:  So I have another question about agents coming onto my property.  We have two hydro lines on our property now, and we were involved in the 1970s law case that established injurious affection.  So we have had quite a bit of experience with your agents coming onto our property.

The last time this happened was, I guess, 2002, and apart from grubbing along the 550 line, the agents said they had to clear out the trees under the 230 line and verbally made an agreement with me that they would save the logs for me and that they would replant with low plants, because it's a screen along the road.

They did not save the logs.  The oak logs were taken away; and the person came to meet with me to discuss what kind of trees to puts under the line, and, after we sat down at the kitchen table, all of a sudden said, This isn't any fun, and he got up and walked out.

Now my question is:  If I'm not happy with the agent that you have assigned to me, what can I do about it?  What recourse do I have?

MR. THOMSON:  I know I saw the notes at your recent meeting that you had with the land agent, and my understanding is that the party that had come to your table was, indeed, a forestry representative that had said that.  Is that right?  No?

MR. WAERN:  No.  The person who said he wasn't having any fun?  He was not a forestry representative.  He was a Hydro One representative.

MR. THOMSON:  This was at the recent meeting you had?

MR. WAERN:  No, no.  At the meeting -- what meeting are you talking about?

MR. THOMSON:  I guess what I'm confused about is, was this of recent variety concerning the 500 line communications?  Or was this regarding when they were doing the maintenance on the 230 line?

MR. WAERN:  This is when they were doing the maintenance on the 230 line.

MR. THOMSON:  I believe that Mr. Morton, who is our forestry representative, had met with you.  My understanding was he was going to look into that matter for us.  I'm not sure.  I will have to touch base with him on it.

MR. WAERN:  I certainly hope he does.  But my question is still, if I am not happy -- if I am not getting satisfactory relationships with the agent who is appointed to me, what recourse do I have?

MR. THOMSON:  Certainly, as I mentioned earlier in the proceeding, I would be a contact person within Hydro One that if you were having a problem directly, that certainly I would be coming out with him and discussing it, to establish or find out why there was a problem.  And certainly it would be dealt with.

MR. WAERN:  Thanks.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Waern.  Mr. Nettleton, redirect?

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  Just a few questions.

RE-EXAMINATION BY MR. NETTLETON:

MR. NETTLETON:  Mr. Thomson, you were having a discussion with my friend, Mr. Fallis, concerning the voluntary permissions that you have obtained.  Do you remember that?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. NETTLETON:  Those voluntary permissions are different from the process that you are here applying to the Board for; right?

MR. THOMSON:  Yes.

MR. NETTLETON:  And have you paid --

MS. ROSS:  I'm sorry, this may be redirect, but this is very leading.  I wonder if my friend could conduct his redirect examination in...

MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Ross.  You would be better heard if you sit down.

MS. ROSS:  I’m sorry.  Old habits die hard.  I apologize.  I object to the question.  It is highly leading.

MR. NETTLETON:  Have you paid -- the objection stands.  I object to the objection.

MS. NOWINA:  Maybe you could phrase your words carefully, Mr. Nettleton.

MR. NETTLETON:  I will do that.

Has Hydro One paid access fees to any of the landowners that you have obtained voluntary permission from?

MR. THOMSON:  No, we have not.

MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you.  Mr. Girard, you were having a discussion with Mr. Fallis concerning the dimensions of the proposed towers on the widened corridor.  Do you remember that?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes, I do.


MR. NETTLETON:  What is the base dimension of the tower that would be located on the lands?

MR. GIRARD:  The base dimensions on the ground is roughly 30 to 35 feet wide.

What I was talking to was the widest point of the tower, which is up in the middle arm, which is where the conductors or wires attach, which is wider.

MR. NETTLETON:  Mr. Girard, you were having a discussion with my friend, Mr. Millar, about condition 2 to the revised terms and conditions.  That term related to notification.  Do you remember that?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MR. NETTLETON:  I would like to ask Mr. Girard the question of whether it is your intention or not to provide written or oral notification, or written and oral notification.

MR. GIRARD:  Our intent is to provide written or oral notification.

MR. NETTLETON:  And why --

MR. GIRARD:  That is the condition.  It is to allow us maximum flexibility in carrying out our work.

MR. NETTLETON:  Can you give an example of what you require or why you require that flexibility?

MR. GIRARD:  There will be instances where we're not able to contact an owner in writing or orally, because we don't have the -- we have not been able to get an updated telephone number, or they may be an absentee owner in a foreign country.  We make every effort to contact the owners before entering the properties, but we do ask for this -- this is a condition we're asking for, that it be either oral or written.

MR. NETTLETON:  Now, when you provide your written notification, do I understand you are going to do that by way of personal service?

MR. GIRARD:  Our intent is to try, always, as I said, to make reasonable efforts to do it with the property agent on a personal basis.  But, there will be owners that are absentee owners and not able to, and then we will mail it to them.  Or we will do it orally.

MR. NETTLETON:  So if you attend a resident residence and there is no one home, what will you then do with the written notification?

MR. GIRARD:  We will -- if there is no one home, we will leave it at the residence and we will try again to follow up, always, with the owner.

MS. ROSS:  Madam Chair, if I may.  This is, in my respectful submission not proper re-examination.

My friend had ample opportunity to explore the issue of notice when he introduced his witnesses and introduced the conditions that were filed as an exhibit this morning.  The witnesses answered questions, in particular, of the Board's counsel, Mr. Millar.  He was -- he gave them ample and adequate opportunity to answer all of his very detailed questions concerning notice, the type of notice they intended to provide, because the conditions that we have seen is not in accordance with what Board Staff recommended at the get-go, in terms of notice to be provided to landowners.

This witness, Mr. Girard, I thought, was very fair-minded in his responses in answer to Mr. Millar's questions, and his responses were to this effect, if I recall the evidence correctly:  that what he intended to do was, first of all, the first and best way of giving notice was personal service through the use of the land agent delivering the notice to the farmer or the landowner.


If that was not possible, the next step that he was going to follow -- and this was Mr. Girard's evidence this morning, and he is the witness -- that he was going to provide notice by way of registered mail.


Lastly, he confirmed that there would be a telephone call.  So that notice Hydro witnesses said they were going to give was either personal service or registered mail of the written material, and then a follow-up telephone call.


That was the evidence.


I don't think it behoves my friend to ask these witnesses the same questions again hoping to get a different answer.  That is not proper re-examination.


MR. NETTLETON:  With respect, Madam Chair, I didn't ask the same question.  There was an important step in between that was missing.  The purpose of redirect is for clarification of the answers that have been provided to make sure that you have the best record before you.


That record, in my respectful submission, has, prior to me asking the questions I did, had uncertainty in respect of what would happen in the event that personal service was attempted but failed.  What would happen with the written notice.

What the witness just indicated was Hydro One's practice.  That was not a matter that was discussed with Mr. Millar this morning.  It related to whether or not written notice would be left with the landowner at the place of residence, or not.


I don't see how that is unfair.  I don't see how that is an unacceptable or unreasonable question to be asked in redirect.  The purpose of this proceeding is to ensure that the record is complete.

I was simply ensuring that.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  In any case, we have both on the transcript now, and when the panel reviews the transcript, we will make an assessment.

MS. ROSS:  Thank you.

MR. NETTLETON:  Those are my questions, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  The Board panel has a couple of questions.  Ms. Chaplin.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.


QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD:

MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Chaplin.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Panel, you were asked some questions I think originally by Mr. Millar and it was followed up by Mr. McMeeken about the studies that you are going to be undertaking relating to the environmental assessment part of the work.

There was a reference made to the Environmental Assessment Act and activities prior to approval.

I am just curious to know -- section 98 is a relatively recent section.  I am just curious, if there were not a section 98 or if the Board were not inclined to grant your request, does Hydro One have another means by which to get access to do the types of studies that are related to the environmental-assessment work?  I'm particularly -- I am just focussing on that at this point.

MR. GIRARD:  If -- you are asking, are there provisions in the Environmental Assessment Act to enter properties?

MS. CHAPLIN:  Well, in that or in any other...

MR. GIRARD:  Our information is there is not.  So, therefore, we would have to ask permission to enter the properties.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay.  Then actually just coming back to this notification issue.  If I understand your testimony now, your first approach would be to provide personal service through the land agent.  My understanding of your testimony was that that would include both an oral discussion with a landowner about any particular concerns, and also written material for your -- for the landowner regarding the specific activities that were going to take place within that window.  Am I correct so far?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Then if the landowner was not there or you were not able to do it that way, but there was a property, you would intend to leave the written materials at the residence; is that correct?

MR. GIRARD:  Yes.  I think what we were trying to get across is that there may be instances where there is no building on the property, there is nowhere to leave the notice.  There is -- it's sometimes difficult with absentee owners to get in touch with them.  We will make every effort to get in touch with them.

That is why there is a following condition about when we cannot contact the owner.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.

MR. GIRARD:  These we expect to be very rare.

MS. CHAPLIN:  You are getting just a bit ahead of me.  I'm trying to think of instances where perhaps there is a residence and the agent has attempted to make contact.  They're not there.

What you have explained is that you intend to leave the material and you will consider that to be notice.  I'm just curious.  How will you be assured that they have received that and why would you not also leave it there, but perhaps also send it by registered mail so that you would have the assurance that it had been received?  In those instances where you know that they live there, if you know what I mean.


MR. GIRARD:  I think where we know that they live there, we will -- I find it hard to -- I'm trying to think of a case where, in fact, we wouldn't be able to contact them if we know they live there, because although our field activities are between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., our property agents work very different hours from that and contact owners in the evenings and on weekends.

So -- but if the Board deemed as a condition of approval that we should send registered mail, then that is what Hydro One will be prepared to do.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Well, I'm asking whether or not you are comfortable that leaving it at the residence, if you have already established that that is where the landowner lives and that that -- you feel that that is sufficient?


MR. GIRARD:  If we left it at the residence.  Again, always we would try to make that oral call, a follow-up telephone call to make sure that the owner did receive it.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay, thanks.

MR. GIRARD:  Because it's in this 48-hour window prior to entering the property.  We don't expect there will be instances where the property owner -- where the owner lives on the property, that this would be the first contact with the owner.

MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.  Thank you very much.  Those are my questions.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Rupert.

MR. RUPERT:  Just a couple of questions, just to confirm and clarify for me exactly what land you are going to get access to, if we give you this order.

Now, I think you said earlier, a lot of questions from Mr. Fallis and others, as to this 175- to 200-foot green band, as we called it, which is the space on which the new line would go.  Clearly, you want access to that.

You also said earlier that the existing right of way beside that, on which there may be today one, two or three towers, the easement agreement for that property does not allow you to go on that property for the purpose of accessing these other properties; right?

MR. GIRARD:  That's correct.

MR. RUPERT:  I think you also said that any crossings of property, other than the green band, would require you to negotiate with landowners to come up with some agreement before you would access by foot or vehicles across their property to get to the green band.

MR. GIRARD:  That is correct.

MR. RUPERT:  That access across those properties is not something that is the subject of your application here.  You will deal with completely separately with landowners in one-on-one negotiations?

MR. GIRARD:  That's correct.

MR. SKALSKI:  Sorry, Mr. Rupert, if I could just clarify.  This is one area where there is a little bit of confusion in the evidence.  Our application, if you look at paragraph 2 of Exhibit A1.1, it sets out in the bottom half of the paragraph that shows on page 1 what the early-access activities are that we're applying for.

Starting on line 23:
"...for the limited purpose of conducting legal and engineering surveys, soil testing, property appraisals, biological and archeological surveys and environmental investigations..."

Now here is the key phrase:
"...together with route access for testing-related vehicles and equipment."

MR. RUPERT:  That's why I asked my question, because I think some of the discussion this morning, if I understood it correctly, and in one of your interrogatory responses, I got a different flavour.

The interrogatory that I am referring to particularly is one in response to an interrogatory from Powerline Connections.  It is interrogatory 19.  That would be Exhibit B, tab 2, schedule 19.

In that interrogatory, the question was asked about providing sketches or drawings about what route Hydro One will take to get to the testing area.

As I read the response, here is the last sentence:
"Where access across non-corridor lands to get to the proposed right of way is required, Hydro One plans to negotiate access arrangements with landowners."

So I took that as being at least separate from this section 98 application.  You're saying your application is different than that?

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.  I can provide some background.

When we were drafting the early-access application and we read the words in the legislation to the effect that early-access activities pertained to fixing the site of the intended work, our initial reading of that meant that the early-access activities had to pertain to only within the widened corridor.

So we asked ourselves the question:  Well, how do we get onto the widened corridor; and does that mean we need some kind of separate agreement?

So that's when we started down the path of drafting the agreement.  Then we scratched our heads a little bit further and thought that if you interpret the section 98 wording broadly, fixing the site of the intended work could also include off-corridor access required to get to the corridor, the widened corridor.

So when we submitted the application, we ended up deciding to include this route access within the early-access activities.  But to be -- just to be conservative, we also included the legal agreement as a draft within the application to cover those situations where we didn't need route access, because to us it was a bit of a grey area in the interpretation of the legislation.

Again, this is the first time out for a section 98.  So we have ended up with this little bit inconsistent situation where we have an agreement for something that we're also asking to be included in the early-access order.

So I can understand your confusion, Mr. Rupert.

MR. RUPERT:  We will have to decide what we think section 98 means, and what is allowable or not allowable, but what are you asking for here?  Are you asking for us to approve access to land that also gives you the right to cross properties to get to this corridor, or are you saying you will deal with that on your own, through separate agreements that are not subject to Board approval?

MR. SKALSKI:  I think we have been clear that getting route access is a fairly sensitive issue with landowners.  So, in our view, it is better to have the discussion with landowners and to negotiate it, because then there is agreement on both sides.

So if you decide to remove that wording from our early-access activities from the order, then we would be content with that.

MR. RUPERT:  That's fine, but I just want to be -- We can remove it or not remove it.  Not to be repetitive, but what are you asking for?  What are you asking for in your application?  It is written out the way it is.

MR. SKALSKI:  Yes.

MR. RUPERT:  Are you asking for us to consider approving it with that in, or is your interrogatory response, being as of July 23rd, more current information where you are now in effect rescinding that request?

MR. SKALSKI:  I think we're saying even if it is included in the order, we would still negotiate access agreements in those situations where we do need off-corridor access.

MR. RUPERT:  Okay.  Thanks.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  That completes the evidentiary portion.

We will move to argument.  We will take a break now, then we will move to argument-in-chief.

Before we do that, are there any parties who wish to make argument today, that is they don't want to return tomorrow?

MR. STEPHENSON:  Madam Chair, I would be perfectly happy to make my argument today.  I can make it and I am happy to do so.

MS. NOWINA:  That would likely be appropriate for you, Mr. Stephenson, to do it following Hydro One's?

MR. STEPHENSON:  That's right.  We support the application.

MS. NOWINA:  Yes.

MR. MacINTOSH:  Same for me, Madam Chair.

MS. NOWINA:  You would like to do it today as well.

MR. MacINTOSH:  Yes, thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Anyone else?  Fine.  We will break until 3:45.

--- Recess taken at 3:23 p.m.

--- Upon resuming at 4:02 p.m.


MS. NOWINA:  Please be seated.  Did any matters come up in the break?


PROCEDURAL MATTERS:

MR. NETTLETON:  Madam Chair, one preliminary matter that my friend, Mr. Sperduti, brought to my attention, concerning the revision to the response to Board Staff Interrogatory No. 5.  It will be recalled, Madam Chair, that originally Staff had requested Hydro One to comment upon a proposed set of conditions and in that original response, Hydro One provided comments on some, but not all, of the conditions that were set out; in particular, condition 7 of the Board Staff information request, which reads:

"Affected areas to be restored to their original condition to the extent possible and practicable, failing which damages to be paid as per section 98(2) of the OEB Act...",

Hydro One did not have any comments to that particular suggestion.  


What we have now realized is that in the revised responses, that condition did not make its way into the revision.  Again, with the help of Mr. Sperduti, I can advise that Hydro One would not object to that condition also finding its way into any set of conditions that the Board may impose in respect to this application.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.


MR. MILLAR:  Madam Chair, if I may, it might be of assistance to the Board.  If Mr. Nettleton is agreeable to it, by way of undertaking, to refile the draft conditions that would include that, so we would have a proper copy, that if the Board is agreeable to granting the application, we would have that list and something that Hydro One is happy with; or, if you prefer, it is not a long condition, we can add it ourselves.


I leave it to you, but it might be helpful to have them refile the draft conditions.


MS. NOWINA:  As long as you file it by tomorrow morning, so we have it for argument; otherwise, I think we can just go with the addendum you just made.


MR. MILLAR:  Why don't I leave it to Mr. Nettleton?  If they can get it to us, great; otherwise, we will leave it.


MS. NOWINA:  Any other matters before we proceed?


Just in the way of schedule that I would like to propose and certainly take any comments from you, if it is not going to work for you.  I propose that we have Mr. Nettleton's argument-in-chief, followed by Mr. Stephenson's argument and Mr. MacIntosh's argument this afternoon.


If Mr. Waern -- and I see he isn't here -- if he wished to make an oral comment, he could make it this afternoon, as well.


Tomorrow morning we will have Mr. Millar's argument, Mr. Ross' argument, Mr. Fallis', Mr. Wellenreiter, Mr. McMeeken - I believe that is everyone - and then final argument by Mr. Nettleton.


Did I miss anyone?  Does anyone have any problem with that proposed schedule?


All right, then we will proceed.  Mr. Nettleton.


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. NETTLETON:


MR. NETTLETON:  Thank you, Madam Chair, Board Members.  

The application that is before you represents a very critical and very important step towards Hydro One's objective of seeking all necessary regulatory approvals for the Bruce-to-Milton project.


The application is seeking from you approval to carry out specific early-access activities that relate to the proposed fixing of the site of the proposed work that relates to the new transmission project that is proposed.


The purpose of the early-access application has been clearly articulated, and no party has seriously challenged the need for the information that Hydro One is seeking to obtain; that is to say, engineering, surveying information, property appraisal information, and information relating to the environmental-assessment data-gathering exercises.


The fixing of the site of the work is what the Act requires this application to be about.  That is what the requirement speaks to in section 98(1.1) of the Act as it relates to this interim application.


Engineering, property appraisal and environmental work will all be used as inputs to that question of whether or not the lands are suitable for the proposed siting of the work.


Mr. Millar, early in his questioning, asked a question to me about whether the breadth of section 98 would allow for only the collection of environmental information.


In my respectful submission, the answer is "yes", and here is why.  It is very important that the policy objectives associated with environmental assessment be understood and considered in light of that type of question.


Environmental assessment is intended to be a planning tool.  It is intended to be a planning tool for the purpose of carrying out a work or project.


Carrying out investigations and surveys associated with environmental assessment early in the process facilitates that policy objective, and so when an application comes before you pursuant to section 98 and it has met the prerequisite and important prerequisite - that is to say, a section 92 application having been filed - in our respectful submission, the early-access activities can and should and ought to take into account environmental-assessment data-gathering exercises, because they ultimately look to and are intended to facilitate the fixing of the site of the work; that is to say preparation of necessary regulatory approval applications for approval of the project.  Environmental information is, therefore, important for that overall exercise.


Now, Mr. Thomson today indicated that there had been changes, changes that had transpired since the last time a project of this magnitude and in this general geographic location have taken place.


It is important to note that when prior projects have proceeded forward, interests in land were acquired through the expropriation process, and that is to say that the early-access approach and methodology that is found in the Act simply did not exist.


What Hydro One is seeking to obtain from the Board is approval to enter onto lands; it is not seeking any type of interest in the lands.  It is seeking to carry out specific activities that are not related to property interests.  They are simply activities that are going to be or could be conducted for the observation and some testing of soils for purposes, again, that are spelled out and addressed expressly in the legislation; namely, the fixing of the site of the work.


Given this significant change in the legislative scheme - that is to say, the contemplation that applicants can come forward to the Ontario Energy Board and request approval for early-access activities - there is no need for Hydro One to go through the expropriation process, a far more onerous process where compensation is necessary; where identification of land rights and land interests have to be made; and, in my respectful submission, completely inconsistent with the objectives of environmental assessment, which is to be used as a planning tool and to ensure that the lands acquired meet environmental objectives.


That process has changed, and its change is seen in your legislation, and, in particular, with the section that we are referring to here today, section 98(2) -- sorry, section 98(1.1).


One of the issues that came up in the proceeding today also related to the question of Hydro One's position with respect to access fees and compensation for access fees.  And the issue that will no doubt arise in argument is whether or not it is appropriate, whether it is just and reasonable, for access fees to be paid by Hydro One for purposes related to early access.  

In my respectful submission, Madam Chair and Board Members, it is simply a non-issue in respect of this proceeding.  The legislation does not contemplate, does not expressly refer to compensation being afforded for early-access activities.  And there is, again, good reason for that.  It relates to the nature of the activities that are contemplated to be carried out, and it relates to the fact that there is no interest in land being taken, and it also relates to the fact that the access-fee concept is one equivalent to compensation, and compensation would be a matter, in my respectful submission, that would be addressed expressly in the legislation.  There is no express reference to compensation.  

Now, that is not unlike other legislative schemes in Canada, where similar sections like section 98 exist.  There are, for example, sections in Alberta's legislative scheme that relate to the carrying out of early access or equivalent access-type activities under the Pipeline Act, where applicants may go onto lands and carry out activities associated with the preparation of applications which is, in effect, what is going on here with these early-access activities.

 It is again for information that will be used for the regulatory applications that Hydro One needs to make in respect of its project.  

Now, is it reasonable for Hydro One to take the view that access-fee payments will not be made?  Again, our submission is, yes.  

What Hydro One is prepared to do and is required to do pursuant to section 98(2) is to ensure that any damage associated with the activities that Hydro One is going to be carrying out on the lands, is paid for.  

Hydro One is liable for any damages associated with the activities that they will be carrying out.  That is not a point of negotiation.  That is not a point of individual needs and requirements of landowners.  That is what the legislation requires.  

It is open.  It is transparent.  And it is available for all landowners.  That's the intent of the legislative scheme and the legislative provision, in my respectful submission.  

The concept that early access is one that adopts open and transparent principles is something that is critical to Hydro One's philosophy and business objectives in respect of this application.  It is why, for example, Hydro One has decided to come forward to you today with proposed terms and conditions.  Those terms and conditions have been set out so that everyone, all landowners, understand the rules of the game, the terms and conditions that will be used to enforce Hydro One's behaviour and conduct as it relates to early-access activities on all lands.  

The reason why that approach is far more favourable and reasonable in these circumstances than other approaches really relates to the nature of the project involved.  

There are probably 400 landowners or parties that will be affected by early-access activities.  The concept that is of great concern to Hydro One is the urgency and need to get onto the lands to start taking account of the surveying information that it requires.  

It simply is impracticable to think that Hydro One would be required to go out and negotiate individual agreements with each landowner, potentially on different terms and conditions, and for those types of agreements to be preferred and be considered to be better or in the public interest as compared to an order of this Board that would establish the terms and conditions that would be applicable for all landowners.  

The principles of transparency and openness and objectivity are far better achieved through the approach that Hydro One is proposing.  

In fairness, Madam Chair, what we did not hear today was serious objections to the proposed terms and conditions.  The subject matter of the terms and conditions have not seriously been challenged.  

While it is true that issues surrounding the terms and conditions, such as notification, were discussed and debated and clarified, the actual subject matter of the 12 conditions was not seriously challenged or debated.  

In our respectful submission, the early-access activities that have been applied for, being conditioned upon what is now found in the revised response to Board Staff Interrogatory No. 5, are just and reasonable, are in the public interest, and should be approved.  

Madam Chairman, those are my comments.  Those are my submissions.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Nettleton.  Mr. Stephenson.  

MR. STEPHENSON:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. STEPHENSON:

MR. STEPHENSON:  The Power Workers' Union supports the application as filed by Hydro One and urges this Board to approve it.  

If I could, I would just like to address, very briefly, a few of the issues on the issues on the Issues List.  From our perspective, this is a straightforward issue, and more of the discussion has been dealing with things which are not issues than things that are issues.  

With respect to the first issue on the Issues List, in our submission this is –- that is a straight statutory-interpretation question looking at section 98 of the Ontario Energy Board Act and the balance of the provisions in that Act. 

In my submission, there is nothing, either in section 98 of the Act, or in anything else in the Act, which acts as a bar to you issuing the order requested, pending further developments on the environmental-assessment front.  

I made some brief submissions on this issue back on Motions Day.  There is some potential risk in the future that if the environmental assessment, as approved, does not conform to the precise route that is proceeded with in terms of the leave-to-construct application, there may be some need for Hydro One to circle back and seek amended approval on the leave to construct.  That is intrinsic in any statutory scheme where more than one approval is required.  It's not possible to obtain them all simultaneously and they may not be all ultimately consistent and some circling back may be required in order to obtain consistencies on all levels.  That is more an issue with respect to leave to construct.  

In my submission, with respect to the early access, there is absolutely nothing in the Act which would cause you to suggest that this application is untimely in any respect.  

I do want to just reiterate that this is a very new provision of your Act.  The provision in question was added by way of an amendment to the Ontario Energy Board Act in 2006, and you may be familiar with the provisions of the Act prior to the amendments.  

Under the Act as it stood prior to the 2006 amendments, this application could not have been brought at this point in time.  There were different statutory preconditions to the Act, and this application, as it stands today, would not have been timely as the Act stood at that point in time.  

But the Act has been amended and the preconditions, contained in the Act have been met by Hydro One and I don't think there is any dispute to that.  

So this application is now timely, and the statutory preconditions have been met.

One of the things I just wanted to discuss with you, while we're talking about statutory interpretation and the Act, is the following.

Obviously you -- as you know, you gain all of your authority and jurisdiction from the Act, and that's where we have to be governed, in terms of how you treat this application or any other application.

We've heard, particularly from Mr. Fallis through his questioning, the suggestion that the urgency, the underlying urgency, of the leave-to-construct application is critical to this application, and, therefore, it is necessary for you to assess whether the underlying application is truly urgent or not truly urgent.

There is, in fact, as it turned out, some evidence of urgency and there is a need, clearly, on the evidence, to get on with this project.  That said, urgency is not a precondition to a successful application for early access.

There is nothing in the Act that suggests that there is any onus on Hydro One or any other applicant to demonstrate that the project is urgent and that early access is required.  There is simply nothing in the Act to suggest that.

In fact, in my submission, that's not the purpose of the provision at all.  It is not necessarily to deal with urgency, although it's certainly useful in those circumstances.  It is dealing with precisely the same -- precisely the issue as identified by my friend, and that is it is a practicality issue.

In a perfect world, it would be great if Hydro One or some other applicant could sit down and get consents on an individual basis from all of the affected landowners.  That would be terrific.  But as a practical matter, it is very easy to envisage that that will not occur, or it certainly will not occur on a timely basis.

And there are other interests at stake.  There are other public interests at stake that governs these kind of projects, and those are the very reasons why it may be entirely appropriate and, in our submission, is appropriate to obtain an order that will govern the situation more broadly in order for this thing to be dealt with on a systematic and reasonable basis.

So it is not about urgency.

The second thing we have heard a lot about is that this is some substantial infringement on property rights.  I'm not going to be dismissive about the importance of property rights and I don't think anybody in the room is.  I think property rights are an important thing.  


But we all, I think, understand that property rights are not absolute.  They are other factors that the legislature can, should and does take into consideration which limits the scope of property rights, and that's what they've done in section 98.  That's exactly what has happened in section 98.

It is a very discrete, but nevertheless clear, limitation of private property rights that the legislature has granted the authority to this Board to undertake in the appropriate circumstances, and it has circumscribed when it should be done or when it may be done, and it has given that authority to the Board.

So there is -- we can't be mesmerized about the fact that there is some -- there are issues here which touch on property rights.  That's of course the very nature of the application, and it is the very nature of the powers granted by section 98.

If the parties that oppose this application -- it seems to me at the end of the day the fundamental concern they have is that they don't like section 98 and the powers that the legislature has seen fit to grant to the Board, and that if they had their druthers, section 98 wouldn't exist.  And that is -- I'm not going to say those are unreasonable views, but, as we often say, those are discussions that have to take place in another room.  

The legislature has dealt with this issue and you've got it, and it is your obligation to administer the Act.

So I don't think we can be mesmerized by the fact that there are issues here that touch on property rights in some respect.

Turning to the second issue on the Issues List.  In terms of the scope of the activities that Hydro One is seeking to undertake and whether they are appropriate for early-access activity, in my submission, I don't think there is any serious issue that they are.  

Board Member Chaplin raises an interesting issue about whether it could be a case where, if it was only about environmental-assessment activities, then there would be the authority of the Board to grant an order under this section.

That is an interesting academic question, but it is not this case.  So I don't think we really have to worry about it too much.

In my submission, the -- clearly the purpose of section 98 is to facilitate activities which will assist and enable an applicant to put a record together for the Board in order for the Board to determine whether or not a leave-to-construct application is appropriate, and it seems, in my submission, that these -- all of the proposed activities are clearly in furtherance of that section 92 application and are appropriate and within the scope of the authority sought under section 98.

Then, lastly, with respect to the terms and conditions, which is the third issue.  In my submission, Hydro One has done a good job on this front, that the 12 conditions that they have in the materials now are reasonable and appropriate and are fair-minded.  

It's, in my view, not insignificant that the Powerline Connections group has, in effect, signed off on it, as I understood; the Board can take some comfort from the fact that a significant group of landowners has had -- played an active role in at least vetting them.  I don't know about 
-- the element of negotiation is not really important --  but at the end of the day, they have been reviewed and considered to the satisfaction of a very significant landowners group, and the Board can take some comfort from that.

Whether there is some minor tweaking to be done on any particular term or condition is not for me to say.  But, broadly speaking, in my submission, Hydro One has done a fair and reasonable job, and that there has been a good balancing of interests from the perspective of them getting their job done on the one hand, and the legitimate interests of the landowners on the other.

Those are the three issues, in my submission.  The application should be approved by you, as sought by Hydro One.

Subject to any questions, those are my submissions.  Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.

MR. SPERDUTI:  Madam Chairperson, now that Powerline Connections has been mentioned, I thought perhaps, with your permission, I would take just one moment to summarize what has happened over the last week and where Powerline Connections stands with respect to all of this.

I don't propose to be very long.

MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Sperduti.  That's fine, Mr. Sperduti.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. SPERDUTI:

MR. SPERDUTI:  Thank you.  As you can tell, Madam Chair, by my relatively low profile today, a lot has been accomplished in the last week with Hydro One.  Thanks are in order to the people, including Mr. Nettleton, that we met with over the course of the week last week to come to the now 13 terms and conditions.

Of course, Powerline, as you know, Madam Chair, was poised to call three witnesses at today's proceeding, and also to cross-examine Hydro One's witnesses.  Of course, that has not been necessary, and the Board's time has been saved and probably some considerable resources.

So we are not opposed, Madam Chair, to an order of this Board granting early access on the terms and conditions outlined in the updated response to interrogatories, and on whatever other conditions the Board sees fit after hearing full submissions from all of the parties.

Thank you.

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Sperduti.  Mr. MacIntosh.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. MacINTOSH:

MR. MacINTOSH:  Madam Chair, Members of the Panel, Energy Probe Research Foundation submits to the Board that the conditions for access as proposed in K1.1 and as expanded upon today in Hydro One's summary of evidence, in response to cross-examination and clarified this afternoon by Mr. Nettleton, appear to be reasonable.  

Energy Probe, therefore, supports the application in this proceeding for an interim order granting Hydro One access to land in connection with its request for leave to construct a new transmission line from the Bruce Power complex in Milton.  

Thank you.  Those are my submissions.  

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. MacIntosh.  

Of the remaining parties to make argument, do you have any preference, in terms of your order?  My assumption was Mr. Ross would go first, but I don't have a particular opinion in this.  I am happy to go with whatever order you would like to go in.  

MS. ROSS:  That's fine.  

MS. NOWINA:  That's fine?  All right.  We are now adjourned for the day.  We will resume tomorrow morning at 9:30 and begin with Mr. Ross' argument.  Thank you very much, everyone.
  

 --- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 4:35 p.m.
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